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02 Chairman’s
Statement

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS,

In my thirty years in the Information Technology industry, last
year was the most challenging one | have experienced. A few
years made a big difference. Back in 1998 and 1999, almost any
telecom or Internet company was glorified as a star.Venture
capital investment skyrocketed to levels never before seen, and
stock markets went wild.

Today, the market has taken an about turn.in the
turbulent telecom sector, we have witnessed a number of
high-profile bankruptcies. Among the Internet upstarts,
thousands have been driven out of business as the
capital markets dry up.

The Resilient Enterprise - Maintaining our Strengths
through Globalisation and Digital Focus

The current phenomenon is the consequence of excesses
in the previous years. Surely, technology is going to be
the key in improving productivity and growth.There is no
doubt that Internet services and wireless
communications make life better, and increasing
adoption is a natural trend for consumers and corporates
alike anywhere in the world.

EBITDA

Millions of Dollars

Stable Performance and Proposed Increase

in Dividend Payout

| am pleased with our stable performance, as we have achieved
sustained profitability year-on-year since our listing in 1992.
Even in a very difficult global environment which marked the
reporting period, Champion Technology managed to report a
profit of HK$171 million, and turnover registered an increase of 8
percent to reach HK$1,633 million. Our balance sheet
remains healthy, with EBITDA (Earnings before Interest,
Taxation, Depreciation and Amortisation) of HK$629
million for fiscal year 2002.

Given the Group’s steady performance since listing ten
years ago, and its track record of sustaining dividend
payment to shareholders throughout the years, the
Directors are confident to recommend a higher dividend
payout at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting in
order to reward our shareholders. At the proposed level
of HK2.5 cents per share for final dividend, total dividend
payment for the full year would amount to HK$23 million,
an increase of 43 percent from last year. We hope to be
able to maintain a competitive dividend in the coming
years.

Revenues

Millions of Dollars

It is one reason why investing in wireless assets and
technology development has remained a priority for us.
Equally important is that globalisation is a trend we saw
coming years ago. The early nineties were marked by the
Group's acquisition of a European radio technology
pioneer and embarking on strategic investments with
leading technology partners in locations spanning from
Russia and India to South America. Champion
Technology today prides itself of having a worldwide
footprint that enables us to compete globally.

Financial Prudence

Champion Technology has taken in its stride previous
shocks, many of which are international events beyond
our control. Indeed we have suffered losses, but we have

remained intact, and every time we were able to emerge
stronger and more resilient. Call it conservative or prudent, my
philosophy has always been to maintain a strong balance sheet
at all times, keeping borrowing to a manageable level. This helps
shield us from volatilities in the financial markets which are
difficult to predict, and obliges us to stay away from business
activities outside our core competence.

L
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1633 Focus for 2003
) in geographical terms, China remains the Group’s largest
market. Our early foray into China in the late eighties and

early nineties has helped establish ourselves in the
world’s biggest economy. Our focus continues to be in
the IT and wireless arena, targeting at the four
spearheads, namely Pearl River Delta, the Western region,
Yangtze Basin, and Beijing, where the Group has already
established presence.

We will continue to enhance our offerings and provide
optimal solutions for the niche markets in China,
especially in response to increased communications
demand ushered in by China’s entry into the WTO and
Beijing's hosting of the 2008 Olympics. We will also work
more closely with third party vendors and technology partners

02

in the drive to deliver more user-friendly systems at lower total
cost of ownership.

Paul KAN Man Lok
Chairman of the Board
25 Qctober 2002




Management
Discussion and
Analysis

The global economic and investment climate was extremely
challenging during the period under review. Continuing
uncertainties and preoccupation with war talk affected
customers’ budgets for new purchases. Under such
circumstances, management stepped up its efforts in keeping
stringent cost and credit control, as well as focusing on
innovative product development and enhanced services
offerings targeted at protecting its margins, Once again, the
Group was able to deliver profitable results in tough market
conditions.

OPERATIONS REVIEW

During the period under review, the Group continued to
strengthen its capabilities, seeking new ways to tie myriad
technological advances in hardware, systems, and software to
build new value for our customers, A number of corporate moves
were made which were targeted at expanding the Group's
product offerings and technology base, with a focus on secure
communications and high value-added systems. In the wake of
the terrorist attacks in New York on 11 September 2001, there has
been a surge in demand for tightened security and defense
quality radio systems by the public as well as the private sectors
across the board. A summary of the key developments during the
period is provided below:

Command and Control Communications

A new unit to pursue Command and Control Communications
(CCC) opportunities in China, Hong Kong, and Asia Pacific
markets has been set up, CCC is commonly used for dispatch,
logistics control and command transmission, and is vital for the
effective and efficient operation of organic units in government
and private enterprises such as police, fire and emergency
services, as well as industrial and commercial enterprises like fleet
control and personnel dispatch in transportation, public utilities
and service industries. Several projects in the region involving
public safety organizations have been identified for active
pursuit, and the Hong Kong team worked closely with our
communications experts from the UK,

MuteTone™ Wireless Solutions

MuteTone™ is a cost-effective solution for unwanted mobile
communications, applying proprietary technology that mutes
mobile signals from the base station to the phones themselves
within a confined and controlled area.The Group is the first to
develop and market such products on a global scale. MuteTone™
solution comprises several differant signal muting systems
catered to the specific regulatory and cultural requirements of
the local market, and it has been designed so that it will not
interfere with any other communications or electronic
equipment inside or outside the affected area, making it safe to
use in almost any working environment.

Champion Technology Holdings LimitedAnnual Report 2002
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The launch has coincided with increasing global demand for

security products and has attracted great interest from many
prospective customers both in the public and private sectors.
The Group is finalizing distributorship agreements in severa!

major markets.

G-SIGMA™ (Global Security Intelligent Generation
Monitoring Appliances) - PeepTone™ Monitoring Solutions
PeepTone™ is a rich-featured real-time digital video monitoring
and recording solution specially designed for remote
management and security applications, seamiessly combining
video multiplexing, digital recording, motion detection, and
motion tracking. PeepTone™ system compresses and transmits
high-resolution video signals through various communications
channels, including ISDN (Integrated Services Digital Network),
PSTN (Public Switched Telephone Network), Mobile network,
LAN (Local Area Network), and the Internet. Each module of
PeepTone™ can be integrated with password authentication,
smart card, and biometrics technology for multiple users for high
security, and can be connected to any number of surveillance
cameras, which can be monitored over one or multiple display
units.The Group is marketing the product and integrated
solution on a global scale.

Internet, e-Commerce, and m-Commerce

Y28 Innovations, the Group’s flagship portal and Internet data
center, has added a number of new content channels and
shopping sites, selling such merchandise as souvenirs, ladies’
cosmetics and healthcare products, accessories, and
decorative items,

The Group’s investment in an international Lost and Found
website kicked off with good reception, and the site attracted a
broad customer base which posted a wide range of lost and
found items. Such information has been integrated with
broadcast channels via the Internet and mobile devices.

The Group's software team continued to develop B2B exchanges
for corporate customers after the compietion and soft launch of
e-Nissei.com, an electronics marketplace built for a leading
Japanese trading group.

Strategic investments

The Group embarked on a number of strategic investments with
leading technology partners in the early 1990s, and some of them
are bearing fruits. An example is Shanghai Ricoh Fax Machine
project, which commenced in 1993, and has two plants in the
Pudong area of Shanghai. 80 percent of the joint venture's fax
machines were destined for export. New facilities were being
planned to produce integrated office solutions and digital imaging
communication in response to increasing global demand.



04 Management

Discussion and

Analysis (Continued)

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM (Digital HK)

Digital HK has adjusted and repositioned itself to expand its
revenue base. Its efforts are paying off, as evidenced by six
consecutive profitable quarters since March 2001. For the year
ended 30 June 2002, Digital HK recorded a profit of HK$0.3
million, compared with a net loss of HK$3.4 million for the
previous year. The results reflected management’s efforts to
obtain business for technical and consultation services in relation
to electronic payment integration and e-commerce solutions.

Meanwhile management has broadened Digital HK's business
scope to embrace other prospective revenue-generating
activities such as systems development in innovative
merchandising and advertising kiosks; security and smart card
related opportunities; as well as IT consulting services.

Kantone Holdings Limited (Kantone)

Kantone continued to realign its product and service mix to
target at higher margin business. China sales remained on target,
and the Group has achieved outstanding results in providing
mission critical communications services for the emergency and
rescue services sectors in the UK. In addition to an ongoing
engagement to test and audit TETRA wireless communications
systems used by the Police Forces in the UK, Kantone also
continued its role as the sole supplier of the command and
control communications with mobile messaging systems for RNLI
(Royal National Lifeboat Institution). Several contracts to supply
emergency communications systems for the UK fire services have
been won.

With a renewed focus on high-margin communications software
customization business, Kantone is developing a suite of mobile
data systems that provides vehicle location and GIS-enabled
(geographical information system) services.

PROSPECTS
The information technology sector is expected to consolidate
further, followed by recovery as the economy bottoms out.

China remains the Group's largest market. With closer links
between Hong Kong and the Mainland; China'’s accession to the
WTO; and further beyond, Beijing’s hosting of the Olympic Games
in 2008, the Group is well positioned to seize the exciting and
enormous opportunities ahead. Our focus will be on Information
Technology for the Public (ITTP), which includes the sectors of
public safety, public security, public transpartation, and public
utility. To this end, co-operation and strategic alliances with
industry leaders and international technology partners will
continue to be forged.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

During the year, the Group had continued its prudent investment
in new product development and technologies to enhance its
bundled offerings and services.Through better allocation of
resources to existing operations and effective cost control via
continued pursuit of business opportunities, the Group was able
to sustain profitability amidst a general soft economic climate
and less than palatable global environment.

Turnover

The Group recorded an audited consolidated turnover for the
year ended 30 June 2002 of HK$1,633 million, an 8 percent
growth compared with HK$1,511 million for the previous
year.The growth in turnover was attributed to increased sales
to China of HK$1,298 million, which accounted for 80 percent
of total turnover, compared to HK$1,177 million of last year.
Turnover from Europe increased 2 percent to reach HK$244
million, representing 15 percent of total turnover.

Profitability

Net profit for the year ended 30 June 2002 was HK$171
million, compared to HK$253 million of last year, and
earnings per share was HK32.13 cents. Earnings before
Interest, Taxation, Depreciation and Amortisation (EBITDA)
was HK$629 million, compared with HK$639 million of last
year.The Group's profitability was affected by several factors:
higher operating costs consequent upon the deferment of
customer orders in the wake of the 911 incident, which
resulted in a loss of HK$6.4 million from European sales;
increased depreciation and amortisation of the Group's
technology development, e-commerce and telecom projects
amounting to HK$399 million; and an impairment provision
of HK$3.9 million in relation to an Internet-related
investment.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

Management's attitude towards financial planning has always
been one of prudence, and throughout the years, the Group
has maintained a net cash position. As at 30 June 2002, the
Group had HK$626 million made up of deposits, bank
balances and cash.The gearing ratio at the year-end was 0.16
(2001:0.17}, which calculation was based on the Group’s total
borrowings of HK$465 million (2001: HK$440 million) and
shareholders’ funds of HK$2,983 miflion (2001: HK$2,585
million).



Total borrowings comprise bank borrowings of HK$433
million (2001: HK$411 million); other borrowings, which
represent block discounting loans of HK$30 million (2001:
HK$27 million); and obligations under finance leases of
HK$2 million (2001: HK$2 million). The bank borrowings are
mainly used as working capital for the Group. Finance costs
for the year ended 30 June 2002 amounted to HK$31 million
(2001: HK$41 million).

In May 2002, the Group took advantage of low interest rates
to enter into a subscription agreement with Credit Suisse First
Boston (Hong Kong) Limited for the issue of up to US$24
million 1.5 per cent unlisted and unsecured convertible
bonds due 2005.This has the effect of further enhancing the
liquidity of the Company’s shares.

Barring unforeseen circumstances, management is confident
that the Company has sufficient funds to meet its daily
business operation requirements as well as to finance new
product development.

it is the Group’s policy to manage the foreign exchange risk
directly and not to undertake any speculative derivative
trading activities, To mitigate the foreign exchange risk of the
Group arising from transactions during the normal course of
business, management has endeavoured to match foreign
currency income with expense. Management will continue to
use appropriate hedging instrument for transactions with
high exchange rate risk. :

As at 30 June 2002, certain land and buildings of the Group
with a net book value of HK$9 million (20071: HK$8 million)
were pledged to a bank as security for banking facilities
granted to the Group.

Share Capital Reorganisation

In April 2002, the Company changed the domicile from the
Cayman Islands to Bermuda, and in May 2002, it reorganized
its share capital through consolidating 25 shares into one
share, followed by the simultaneous adjustment in nominal
value of its shares to HK$0.10; and change of the board lot
size to 2,000 new shares.The corporate exercise aimed at
providing the Company with more fiexibility to raise funds in
the equity market to seize viable business opportunities.

Champion Technology Holdings LimitedAnnual Report 2002
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Final Dividend and Scrip Dividend Scheme

Subject to the approval of shareholders at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting, the directors proposed a final dividend
of HK2.5 cents per share for the year ended 30 June 2002 (2001:
HK0.15 cent per share, before the adjustment for the bonus issue
of shares in December 2001 and the share consolidation in May
2002) to shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on 29 November 2002.Taking into
account of the interim dividend of HK0.0625 cent per share
(before the adjustment for the share consolidation in May 2002)
paid on 14 June 2002, total dividends for the year would amount
to HK$23 million, an increase of 43 percent over HK$16 million of
last year.

The final dividend will be satisfied by allotment of new shares of
the Company, credited as fully paid, by way of scrip dividend,
with an alternative to the shareholders to elect to receive such
dividend (or part thereof) in cash in lieu of such allotment (the
“scrip dividend scheme”).

The scrip dividend scheme is subject to the granting by the
Listing Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
of a listing of and permission to deal in the shares to be issued
pursuant thereto. A circular setting out the details of the scrip
dividend scheme together with the form of election will be sent
to the shareholders of the Company as soon as practicable.

itis expected that certificates for shares to be issued under the
scrip dividend scheme and dividend warrants will be despatched
to those entitled thereto on or before 27 January 2003.



06 Directors and
Senior Management
Profile

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Paul KAN Man Lok is the founder and Chairman. He is also the
Chairman of Kantone Holdings Limited, which is listed on the
Main Board, and the Chairman of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM,
which is listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. He holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from the Chinese University of Hong Kong, and
brings over 30 years of experience in the computing and
telecommunications industries to bear on fully leveraging the e-
commerce technology that is a key success factor for business
today. As the author of the books in The Hong Kong e-
Commerce Studies Series published by Digital HK, he has forged
a strong link between his IT legacy and the promise of an
online-assisted life. Prior to setting up the Champion
Technology Group in 1987, he was the general manager of
Asiadata Limited, a computing services subsidiary of Cable &
Wireless PLC, where he worked for more than 15 years.

In civic duties, Mr.Kan has served twice on the Stock Exchange
Working Group on Corporate Governance during 1994-1995 and
1999-2000, and is currently a member of the Listing Committee
of the GEM Board. He is also Chairman of the Hong Kong
Information Technology Industry Council; council committee
member of the Federation of Hong Kong Industries; and
member of the Hong Kong Legislative Council Election
Committee for the IT sector. Other memberships include the
Hong Kong Trade Development Council Electronics and Electrical
Appliances Advisory Committee; the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Auhui Province in the PRC; and the
Election Committee for the Hong Kong representatives of
National People’s Congress of China.

Mr.Kan also sits on the board of CLP Holdings Limited as an
independent non-executive director.

Leo KAN Kin Leung is the Group's Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer, as well as a Non-executive Director of Kantone
Holdings Limited. He is the brother of Paul Kan.He is
responsible for formulating the Group’s overall policy and
development strategy as well as the Group’s global operations
and management. Prior to jaining the Group in 1988, he held
management positions in several international companies in
Hong Kong. He holds a Master’s degree in Business
Administration from Dalhousie University in Canada and a
Master's degree in Economics from the University of Alberta in
Canada.

Mr.Kan serves on a number of sub-committees of the Hong
Kong Information Technology Industry Council,including
International Development and Co-operation Sub-committee,
China Development and Co-operation Sub-committee, and
Government and Sub-vented Funding Sub-committee. He also
serves on the IT Committee of the Young Industrialist Council.

Sunny LAl Yat Kwong is the Group's Executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer, with responsibility for its financial and
accounting policy and control. He is also Chief Executive Officer
(Acting) and Chief Financial Officer of Kantone Holdings Limited.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong and has over 25 years of
experience in accounting, auditing and company secretarial
matters. He is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants, and is also a certified public accountant.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Jennifer CHEUNG Mei Ha is a solicitor practising in Hong Kong.
She has been the Group’s Independent Non-executive Director
and Company Secretary since 1992.

Terry John MILLER has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of Champion since 1992, He is also the Deputy Chairman
and Non-executive Director of Multitone. He is the Managing
Director of Asia Pacific Financial Management Limited. Previously,
he held the position of Deputy Chief Executive at Hong Kong
Telecommunications Limited, and was the Regional Director,
Asia/Pacific, of Cable & Wireless PLC. He is a fellow of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and is the former
president of the Hong Kong Institute of the International
Association of Financial Executives.

Francis Gilbert KNIGHT has been an Independent Non-
executive Director since February 2000. Mr. Knight is the
Chairman and Managing Director of Asian Security and
Investigation Services Limited which is a private company. A
fellow of the British Institute of Directors and the British Institute
of Management, the American Society for Industrial Security and
the International Association of Police Chiefs, Mr.Knight has over
17 years' experience in the field of copyright protection, security
and commercial investigations, and acts as security adviserto a
number of major organizations.

Professor LIANG Xiong Jian is an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since November 2001. He has over 30
years of experience in telecommunications in China.He is
presently a Professor of the Department of Management
Engineering at the Beijing University of Posts and
Telecommunications (BUPT), a post he has held since 1986, and
the Director of the Institute of Telecommunications Management
of BUPT.From 1986 to 1993, he was the Dean of Management
Engineering Department of BUPT. His other positions include
Member of National Committee of Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference (CPPCC); Representative of the People's
Congress, Beijing Municipality; and Director of Communication
Economy & Management Society, China Institute of



Communications. He is also an independent director of PRC
company Unicom Guomai Communications Limited, which is
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange and is a member of China
Unicom Group responsible for data communications, messaging,
and wireless telecommunications.

Professor Liang is well-known to the telecom community in Hong
Kong, having been invited on numerous occasions to chair and
lecture at major wireless and various other telecom conferences
held in Hong Kong and the Region.

Professor YE Pei Da has been an independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since November 2001.He is a professor
and Honorary President of Beijing University of Posts &
Telecommunications in China and a director of Lucent
Technologies Fibre Optic Cable Company. He is also a senior
Member of the Chinese Academy of Science.

Frank BLEACKLEY has been an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since November 2001. He was formerly
the Managing Director of Chubb China Holdings Limited of
Chubb Security Group, a manufacturer and distributor of security
and safety products and systems based in the United Kingdom.
He has over 28 years of experience in the management and
business development of joint venture companies in Hong Kong
and Mainland China.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Francis KAN is Executive Vice President, Systems Development,
overseeing the Group's information systems. He holds a Master’s
degree from the University of Alberta.

Iris KOO Kin Hing is Senior Vice President, Finance, overseeing all
financial operations of the Group. She is a member of the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants and the Chartered Association of
Certified Accountants.

Roy GOSS, based in Macau, is Director of international Business.
He is a seasoned expert in finance and telecommunications,
having served in the Middle East and Macau with Cable and
Wireless companies for almost 20 years. He is a felow member of
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.
Prior to joining the Champion Technology Group, he was the
Finance Director of Macau Telecommunications Company, a
subsidiary of Cable and Wireless PLC, where he worked for more
than 17 years.
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Luiz Octavio VILLA-LOBOS is'Managing Director of Multitone
Eletronica Ltda, with responsibility for running the Brazilian
subsidiary of Multitone. He holds a Master’s degree in Aerospace
Engineering from Sup’Aero in France and an MBA from the
London Business School.

Teresa TONG is Vice President, Interactive Operations, and is
responsible for the customer care aspects of the Group’s
e-commerce and-communications business.

Julia LEUNG Yiu Lin is Vice President of e-Business Development,
focusing on expanding business opportunities.



08 Notice of
Annual General
Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the annual general meeting of
Champion Technology Holdings Limited (the “Company”} will be
held at Room 1702, One Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place,
Hong Kong on 29 November 2002 at 10:30 a.m. for the following
purposes:

1. Toreceive and consider the audited financial statements and
the reports of the directors and auditors for the year ended
30 June 2002.

2. Todeclare afinal dividend of HK2.5 cents per share for the
year ended 30 June 2002.

3. Toelect directors and to authorise the board of directors to
fix their remuneration.

4. To appoint auditors and to authorise the board of directors
to fix their remuneration.

By Order of the Board
Jennifer CHEUNG Mei Ha
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 25 October 2002

Principal Office:
The Penthouse
Kantone Centre

1 Ning Foo Street
Chaiwan

Hong Kong

Notes:

(1) A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by
the above notice is entitled to appoint proxies to attend and vote in
his stead. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. In order
to be valid, the form of proxy must be deposited at the Company’s
principal office in Hong Kong together with a power of attorney or
other authority, if any, under which it is signed or a notarially
certified copy of that power or authority, not less than 48 hours
before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting.

(2) The register of members of the Company will be closed from 25
November 2002 to 29 November 2002, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of shares will be effected. In order to qualify
for the final dividend to be approved at the annual general meeting,
all transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant share certificates
and, in the case of warrantholders, alt duly completed subscription
forms accompanied by the relevant warrant certificates and the
appropriate subscription moneys, must be lodged with the
Company’s Branch Share Registrars in Hong Kong, Secretaries
Limited at 5th Floor, Wing On Centre, 111 Connaught Road Central,
Hang Kong not later than 4:00 p.m.on 22 November 2002.
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The directors present their annual report and the audited financial statements for the
year ended 30 June 2002.

CHANGE OF DOMICILE AND ADOPTION OF NEW
MEMORANDUM AND BYE-LAWS

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 27 March 2002, the Company changed the
domicile of the Company from the Cayman Islands to Bermuda by way of de-registration
in the Cayman Islands and continuation as an exempted company under the laws of
Bermuda (the “Change of Domicile”).

In addition, the Company adopted the Memorandum of Continuance and the Bye-Laws
on 27 March 2002 in substitution for the original Memorandum of Association and the
Articles of Association respectively (the “Adoption”).

Both the Change of Domicile and the Adoption became effective on 11 April 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. its subsidiaries are principally engaged
in sales of general systems products, provision of services and software licensing, leasing
of systems products and investments in telecommunications networks and e-commerce
projects.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2002 are set out in the consolidated
income statement on page 18 and in the accompany notes to the financial statements.
An interim dividend in scrip form equivalent to HK0.0625 cents per share, with a cash
option, was distributed to the shareholders during the year. A final dividend in scrip form
equivalent to HK2.5 cents per share, with a cash option, is proposed by the directors.
Movements of the accumulated profits are set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND WARRANTS
Details of movements in the share capital and warrants of the Company during the year
are set out in note 30 to the financial statements.

RESERVES
Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the year are
set out in note 31 to the financial statements.

The Company’s reserves available for distribution represent the aggregate of general
reserve, special reserve and the accumulated profits of HK$1,539,861,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

During the year, the Group incurred an aggregate of approximately HK$13.7 million
mainly in the acquisition of additional plant and machinery and telecommunications
networks.

Details of these and other movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

ASSOCIATE

Particulars of the Group’s associate at 30 June 2002 are set out in note 17 to the financial
statements.

Champion Technology Holdings LimitedAnnual Report 2002
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DIRECTORS AND SERVICE CONTRACTS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive directors:
Paul Kan Man Lok
Leo Kan Kin Leung
Sunny Lai Yat Kwong

Independent non-executive directors:
Francis Gilbert Knight
Jennifer Cheung Mei Ha
Terry John Miller
Prof. Liang Xiong Jian

(appointed on 30 November 2001)
Prof. Ye Pei Da

(appointed on 30 November 2001)
Frank Bleackley

(appointed on 30 November 2001)

In accordance with sections 86(2) and 87(1) of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Leo Kan Kin
Leung, Prof. Liang Xiong Jian, Prof. Ye Pei Da and Mr. Frank Bleackley, retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-election. All other remaining directors continue in office.

No directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
has a service contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The non-executive directors have been appointed for a term subject to retirement by
rotation as required by the Company’s Bye-laws.

SHARE OPTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

The Company, Kantone Holdings Limited (“Kantone”), a 57% owned subsidiary of the
Company, and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM, a 78% owned subsidiary of the Company, each
has an executive share option scheme under which employees, including directors, of the
Company, Kantone, DIGITALHONGKONG.COM or any of their respective subsidiaries may
be granted options to subscribe for shares in Champion, Kantone and
DIGITALHONGKONG.COM respectively.
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SHARE OPTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES - continued

(i}

The Company

Under the Company's share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) which was
adopted at a general meeting of the Company on 29 July 1992, the Company may
grant options to executive directors and employees of the Company or its
subsidiaries, for the primary purpose of providing incentives to its employees, to
subscribe for shares in the Company without initial payment at a subscription price.
Options granted are exercisable at any time during a period as may be determined
by the directors, which shall be not more than ten years from the date of issue of the
relevant options. The subscription price is equal to the higher of the nominal value of
the shares and an amount which is 80% of the average of the closing prices of the
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant. The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the share capital of
the Company in issue from time to time (except any shares issued pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme) and the maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted to any one employee shall not exceed 25% of the maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme. Unless otherwise terminated or altered, the Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for a period of ten years from the date of adoption.

As the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) relating to the Share Option Scheme were
amended on 1 September 2001, share option can be granted under the Share
Option Scheme provided that the existing Listing Rules on share option schemes are
complied with.
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SHARE OPTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE

SHARES OR DEBENTURES - continued

The Company - continued

{i)

ARBEBALFEERERRHZBR

Details of share options granted by the Company to the directors and employees of

BEBET: the Company are as follows:
Shares options (adjusted as appropriate)
BRERFRBRZBH (BEHEXAE)
Adjustment
Outstanding Adjustment on con- Lapsed OQutstanding
Exercisable Exercise at on bonus solidation during at
Name of director period price 1.7.2001 issue#  of shares” the year 30.6.2002
j ¢ 3:%1 R-®P-—F R-BE_F
+tA-8 HUBER HERaH ~A=tH
TR fTEm HR{TE LB il 12 ERRY RETE
HKS
BT
Leo Kan Kin Leung 30.4.1999 t0 29.4.2002 0.08664% 15,000,000 15,000,000 - (30,000,000) -
BER —“AANERARZTHEZ
“EF-EWA-TAR
8.2.2000t0 7.2.2003 5.824* 1,000,000 1,000,000 (1,920,000) - 80,000
“TEEX-_BNBE
—ER=F-A+H
Sunny Lai Yat Kwong 30.4.1999 10 29.4.2002 0.086644 15,000,000 15,000,000 - {30,000,000) -
FER —AANEEAZTEE
—2E-FfREAZTAR
8.2.2000 t0 7.2.2003 5.824* 1,000,000 1,000,000 {1,920,000) - 80,000
ZEEEF_ANRE
ZE¥ZE_A+A
32,000,000 32,000,000 (3,840,000} {60,000,000) 160,000
Employees 30.4.1999 t0 29.4.2002 0.08664# 4,500,000 4,500,000 - (9,000,000) -
ER “MAMERAZTEEZ
ZEEZFEEAZTAHR
8.2.2000t0 7.2.2003 5.82#* 63,000,000 63,000,000 (120,960,000} - 5,040,000
—EETE-_/FNAE
ZETZFC-At¢H
67,500,000 67,500,000 (120,960,000) (9,000,000) 5,040,000
99,500,000 99,500,000 (124,800,000) (69,000,000) 5,200,000

¢ BREMSRZBENRE RBEZTE
HERARTRERREHTR/E R
BB -BRMOHZERE R_FE
—E+Z A+ BIARIE R S BT

BRAAT R R

* BRERSRIBOUERBEREZITE

HE B

3 H 25 SRR E Ho 0L Z

BOESHAREREE2508TIR
BUTRAG_FFT_FAANAET
EEREERTRRBITRHCEESRS
R250BTHIREGROIOGETLHIELH

HE-

*

The number of share options and the corresponding exercise prices have been adjusted as
a result of bonus issue of the Company's shares on the basis of one share for every share
then held by the shareholders of the Company on 19 December 2001.

The number of share options and the corresponding exercise prices have been adjusted as
a result of the consolidation of 25 shares of Champion of HK$0.10 each into 1 share of
HK$2.50 each and thereafter reduction of the nominal value of each of issued and
unissued shares of Champion from HK$2.50 each to HK$0.10 each on 4 May 2002.
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MEREREEREROGUASZET SHARE OPTIONS AND DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
— SHARES OR DEBENTURES - continued

(i) B8 (i)
ERRAITRABBRETZ BB
HE BRURNEFRESEDBRE
URBEBRZERD TEBENERAE
BRHERD FASLZEREANE
BEMETZHENTRBRITE-BE
BERPROz2BEARMEEST
CREBORBEBRESHBESHZAR
A% 582 FHYTES%  MELER
EEBE- RN EHRHEEAET
By RTER_EE-FhhA—0E
FORBREEYEFARE LR
FHEREFEBREZHEIT BEL
EHEBRETETURL - TRNERLE
MARFESHREETMERE TEL
W EATERIERBITE

(iii) BEEER (i)
FEEERLCBRENAEENRE
EZHEREAERTE EMEEZ
R T LR EEBRERT AR
ZERTASHREBEERERTRME
ATE-BREMPRZBOHZIREE
AROEE RONBLEBZTREK
MEIBOREEZBREZL A2
REXZEZFHUTE ZENES
ERE-ERAUR BEFREIEMS
REBRR T ABERE

Kantone

Kantone has an executive share option scheme which enables the directors of
Kantone to grant options to directors and employees, for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to their employees, to subscribe for shares in Kantone.The
share options granted by the Kantone are exercisable at any time for a period as it
may be determined by its directors. The subscription price of the option shares is the
higher of the nominal value of the shares and an amount which is 80% of the
average of the closing prices of the shares on the five trading days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the options. As the Listing Rules relating to share
option schemes were amended on 1 September 2001, share option can be granted
under these share option schemes provided that the existing Listing Rules on share
option schemes are complied with. No share option was granted by Kantone to
directors of the Company during the year and outstanding at end of the year.

DIGITALHONGKONG.COM

Options granted by DIGITALHONGKONG.COM are exercisable at any time for a period
as may be determined by its directors, which shalf be not less than three years and
not more than ten years from the date of issue of the relevant options.The
subscription price of the option shares is the higher of the nominal value of the
shares, an amount which is the closing price per share on the date of grant and an
amount which is the average of the closing prices of the shares on the five business
days immediately preceding the date of grant of the options. No share option was
granted by DIGITALHONGKONG.COM to directors of the Company since its adoption.

fr P 2 SRR AT BISN AR A Other than the share option schemes described above, at no time during the year was the
HEBABRERERSHEESEEMETEHE- Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of
ABEARESEEBBATLSSERE the Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
HEABEZROGBESFMER ZSEZRE the Company or any other body corporate and none of the directors, or their spouse and
ERREABISHES FAHEVRBERAAE children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company,

HZEAERN REERFERGETALS or had exercised any such right during the year.

R

Champion Technology Holdings LimitedAnnual Report 2002
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DIRECTORS’' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES
As at 30 June 2002, the interests of the directors and their associates in the securities of
the Company and its associated corporations as recorded in the register maintained by
the Company pursuant to Section 29 of Hong Kong Securities (Disclosure of Interests)

Ordinance (the “SDI Ordinance”) were as follows:

{i)

(ii)

(i)

Securities of the Company

Number
of shares
2578 . 4=]

Name of director

Paul Kan Man Lok

Leo Kan Kin Leung
Sunny Lai Yat Kwong
Francis Gilbert Knight
Jennifer Cheung Mei Ha
Terry John Miller

Prof. Liang Xiong Jian
Prof.Ye Pei Da

Frank Bleackley

Securities of Kantone
Name of director

Paul Kan Man Lok

Leo Kan Kin Leung
Sunny Lai Yat Kwong
Francis Gilbert Knight
Jennifer Cheung Mei Ha
Terry John Miller

Prof. Liang Xiong Jian
Prof.Ye Pei Da

Frank Bleackley

Securities of DIGITALHONGKONG.COM
Name of director

Paul Kan Man Lok

Leo Kan Kin Leung
Sunny Lai Yat Kwong
Francis Gilbert Knight
Jennifer Cheung Mei Ha
Terry John Miller

Prof. Liang Xiong Jian
Prof.Ye Pei Da

Frank Bleackley

(Note 1) (FfizE1)

(Note 2) (Ffst2

(Note 3) (H13£3)

Number
of warrants
B2mEeNE

{Note 1) (Kt3E1)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS [N SECURITIES - continued

Notes:

1. 227,901,601 shares and 1,043,056,835 warrants were held by Lawnside international Limited
("Lawnside”), Lawnside is wholly owned by Lanchester Limited which is a company beneficially
owned by a discretionary trust, the eligible discretionary objects of which include Mr. Paul Kan
Man Lok and his family members and staff of Champion and its subsidiaries. Currently, only Mr.
Paul Kan Man Lok and his family members are discretionary objects of the trust. As at 30 June
2002, Lawnside had interests in approximately 40% of the entire interest of Champion. The
warrants issued by Champion will expire on 6 January 2003.These shares and warrants are
classified as other interests under the Listing Rules.

2. 1,265,940,702 shares were held by the Company and 399,084,420 shares were held by
Lawnside. These are classified as other interests under the Listing Rules.

3. 117,300,000 shares were held by the Company and 2,669,171 of these shares were held by
Lawnside. These are classified as other interests under the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above and other than certain nominee shares in subsidiaries held by
directors in trust for the Company or its subsidiaries, none of the directors or any of their
associates had any interest in the securities of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as defined in the SDI Ordinance as at 30 June 2002.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 30 June 2002, the Company and its subsidiaries other than
Kantone and its subsidiaries {the “Kantone Group”), and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM and its
subsidiaries (the “DIGITALHK Group”) had the following transactions with the Kantone
Group and the DIGITALHK Group:

Transactions Transactions

with the with the
Kantone DIGITALHK
Group Group
B8 HEEEFR
S@EZEH NAZXH
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHET

Fees received for the provision of office premises
and facilities, and management services 1,200 -
Sales of telecommunications equipment 214 -
Purchases of pagers and equipment 128 -
Registration fee, annual fee and technical fee paid - 6,687
Administration fees received - 3,000

Champion Technology Holdings LimitedAnnual Report 2002
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS - continued

In the opinion of the independent non-executive directors of the Company, the above
transactions were carried out in the usual course of business and on normal commercial
terms.

Save as disclosed above, no contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 30 June 2002, the register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section
16(1) of the SDI Ordinance showed that, other than the interests disclosed above under
directors’interests in securities, the Company has not been notified of any other interests
representing 10% or more of the Company'’s issued share capital.

CONVERTIBLE SECURITIES, OPTIONS, WARRANTS OR
SIMILAR RIGHTS

Other than the convertible bonds, and warrants and share options as set out in notes 28
and 30 respectively to the financial statements, the Company had no outstanding
convertible securities, options, warrants or other similar rights as at 30 June 2002 and
there was no exercise of convertible securities, options, warrants or similar rights during
the year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-laws or the laws
of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 30 June 2002, the aggregate amount of turnover and purchases
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers respectively represented
less than 30% of the Group's total turnover and purchases.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company has complied throughout the year with the Code of Best Practice as set out
in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS
A resolution will be proposed at the annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs.
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Paul KAN Man Lok
CHAIRMAN

Hong Kong

25 October 2002
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Touche
Tohmatsu

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHAMPION TECHNOLOGY HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 18 to 75 which have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of financial statements
which give a true and fair view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and
fair view it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion, based on our audit, on those
statements and to report our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements of Auditing Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. It also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors
in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the circumstances of the Company and the Group, consistently applied
and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the information and explanations
which we considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the
presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group as at 30 June 2002 and of the profit and cash flows of the
Group for the year then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Hong Kong
25 October 2002

Champion Technology Holdings LimitedAnnual Report 2002



18 Consolidated Income Statement

GaARN

For the year ended 30 June 2002

RE_PP_FEAAZTBHLER

Notes Ff3 2002 2001

—BeCF ZEF-F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FET

EEE Turnover 4 1,633,388 1,510,779
BEELERE Direct operating expenses (840,396) (713,488)
PRl Gross profit 792,992 797,291
TEEFEHEEERE IS Gain on disposal of interest in e-commerce projects 26,213 4,669
HAp@ BB A Other operating income 5 30,369 38,125
AL Distribution costs (47,184) (47,974)
— R RITHRE R General and administrative expenses (151,563) (139,869)
FEREN Depreciation and amortisation (399,680) (301,482)
MEERFERE Research and development (14,763) (13,676)
HaEE T Other operating expenses 6 (7,053) -
R F Profit from operations 7 229,331 337,084
SRS R AR Finance costs 8 (31,071) (40,812)
B B2 A e F) Profit before taxation 198,260 296,272
g Taxation 9 (427) (584)
RETDHBFERE T BT Profit before minority interests 197,833 295,688
LDERREER Minority interests (27,263) (43,109)
EF R Net profit for the year 170,570 252,579
g Dividends 10 23,379 16,286

slREM Earnings per share 11

—EX - Basic 32.13 centsil 53.55 centsili

— s - Diluted 31.73 cents{l 53.26 centsfili




Consolidated Balance Sheet 19
At 30 June 2002
R-_SB-ZEXA=Z+A
Notes it 3% 2002 2001
ZBBF —EE-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FiERL
(restated)
(&)
BERAMR ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
NE-BERSE Property, plant and equipment 12 158,909 226,185
R KA Systems and networks 13 769,035 669,186
ETHHERBE Z#ER Interest in e-commerce projects 15 631,036 707,574
EHIEE 2 S interest in telecommunications projects 16 483,214 309,613
MEEQTZES Interest in an associate 17 46,500 46,500
ey Deposits 18 540,093 519,972
BAERE Investments in securities 19 126,958 11,560
2,755,745 2,490,590
MEBEE Current assets
=& Inventories 20 49,736 56,014
FEREZREMER Trade and other receivables 21 509,328 332,352
B4R (B 7 I8 Taxation recoverable 1,057 252
FEHIR Investments in securities 19 2 2
FRSOEERRS Deposits, bank balances and cash 22 626,001 565,752
1,186,124 954,372
mEBE Current liabilities
EAEHREMER Trade and other payables 23 117,680 154,811
RERE Warranty provision 24 1,959 1,669
ERE® Customers’ deposits 24,391 4,217
ISR Taxation payable 238 411
RITEE-RN—E=RIH Bank borrowings — amount due within one year 25 323,164 248,023
HibBEE -RN—EXNEH Other borrowings — amount due within one year 26 11,481 6,720
BEHEEARE-P-FERNIH Obligations under finance leases - amount due
within one year 27 208 1,503
479,821 417,354
RBMEEEHE Net current assets 706,303 537,018
EEBERAHAEE Total assets less current liabilities 3,462,048 3,027,608
LEREER Minority interests 287,593 259,031
EREAR Non-current liabilities
BITEE-N—EEBHE Bank borrowings - amount due after one year 25 109,661 163,217
HitgBE-R—FEIE Other borrowings - amount due after one year 26 18,574 19,991
RAHEAE-R—FEIH Obligations under finance leases
- amount due after one year 27 759 264
FTRRES Convertible bonds 28 62,386 -
EIEHIE Deferred taxation 29 40 37
191,420 183,509
BERE Net assets 2,983,035 2,585,068
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20 Consolidated Balance Sheet (Continued)

FRAERER (B)

Notes f1E 2002 2001
—PE_% IER-F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHT TERT
(restated)
(|5

BB &R ok K CAPITAL AND RESERVES
N Share capital 30 56,978 593,347
i Reserves 31 2,926,057 1,991,721
BREAES Shareholders’ funds 2,983,035 2,585,068

FISEFISEFBZIVBRBREDR
FHATAERESENERBTIES

RERE:

Paul KAN Man Kok
g

Director

EE

— = —

—

Leo KAN Kin Leung

WER
Director

EE

The financial statements on pages 18 to 75 were approved and authorised for issue by
the Board of Directors on 25 October 2002 and are signed on its behalf by:



Balance Sheet 21
At 30 June 2002
R-ZBBZEXA=+H
Notes BizE 2002 2001
ot~ ek 3 —EE-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHT
(restated)
(&)
HERAM ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERDEE Non-current assets
MEBRSIZIRE investments in subsidiaries 14 206,906 206,906
REERTZER Interest in an associate 17 330,500 330,500
e Deposits 18 111,425 -
BHIBE Investments in securities 19 118,560 -
767,391 537,406
RBEE Current assets
HE R Other receivables 837 576
EKRHMBLTERIE Amounts due from subsidiaries 1,370,590 1,331,345
FRB|OEFERRSE Deposits, bank balances and cash 22 46,459 18,631
1,417,886 1,350,552
mBEE Current liabilities
HiRAERER Other payables 2,760 2,372
BB RERE Amounts due to subsidiaries 28,420 15,944
HITEE-R—ERNIE Bank borrowings - amount due within one year 25 53,333 60
84,513 18,376
RBEEZRE Net current assets 1,333,373 1,332,176
BERERRDAR Total assets less current liabilities 2,100,764 1,869,582
ERENAE Non-current liabilities
RITBE-RN—FETH Bank borrowings - amount due after one year 25 106,667 160,000
AR ES Convertible bonds 28 62,386 -
169,053 160,000
EEEE Net assets 1,931,711 1,709,582
BER R CAPITAL AND RESERVES
AR Share capital 30 56,978 593,347
EA Reserves 31 1,874,733 1,116,235
REES Shareholders' funds 1,931,711 1,709,582

Paul KAN Man Kok
g
Director

EZ
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Leo KAN Kin Leung

13-
Director

EE



22 Consolidated Statement of Recognised Gains and Losses

#F2cNRRERGNER

For the year ended 30 June 2002
RE_FS_FXAA=T+HLESE

2002 2001
k3ot —ERE-=
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
RENER I BERERES Exchange differences arising on translation of
TMEARESESREIEZEREZE  operations outside Hong Kong not recognised
in the consolidated income statement 1,723 (141)
REFLF Net profit for the year 170,570 252,579
ERBKEeE Total recognised gains 172,293 252,438
EEEMHEEREERZBE Prior period adjustment arising as a result of derecognition
fMEEZFIRE of liability in respect of dividend declared 8,828




Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 23
FERSRDE |
For the year ended 30 June 2002
BE_SB_FAAZHBLEER
Notes ffizt 2002 2001
—B2f —RR—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fax FHET
BERBERBZHLBE NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 32 511,631 390,519
HEORRRERA RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND
SERVICING OF FINANCE
2R E Interest paid (28,277) (40,389)
DIREBEE Dividends paid (15,642) (7,616)
BREBEZHBER Finance charges on finance leases (324) (423)
BB interest received 13,108 19,946
SN Dividend received 1,346 1,160
HEOBRRENARER2BH NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM RETURNS ON
INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF FINANCE (29,789) (27,322)
nE TAXATION
CHEMEBRGEH Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (927) (4,291)
CHREMBEEMERE Taxation in other jurisdictions paid (500) (187)
RERERSE CASH OUTFLOW FOR TAXATION (1,427) (4,478)
HHEESH INVESTING ACTIVITIES
EHERBEER ERBRER Deposits paid in connection with projects
ERBEKZERERS refating to systems and networks,
telecommunications projects and
internet operations (461,198) (271,724)
EGERBRER Payments for systems and networks (73,644) (22)
ENHEREZER Payments for investments in
telecommunications projects (70,363) (178)
BEWE BERD Purchase of property, plant and equipment (11,492) (18,917)
BARZSRE Purchase of investments in securities {725) -
LEYE BERBEZNERE Proceeds from disposal of property, plant
and equipment 168 70
HEETHEBEE A ZHMERE Proceeds from disposal of interest in
e-commerce projects - 98,057
EFHEEERAZER Payments for investments in e-commerce
projects - (200,416)
—KEBERFRZBR Advance to an associate - (46,500)
REEFBHMERSPHE NET CASH OUTFLOW FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES (617,254) (439,630)
RENMERASBE NET CASH OUTFLOW BEFORE FINANCING (136,939) (80,911)
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24 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (Continued)

Notes Fii3 2002 2001
—BB_F —ERE-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FEL
BR FINANCING 33
BIIRMRIEFRIE Proceeds from issue of shares 122,756 19
BT RBRASTNEESRE Net cash receipt from issue of convertible
(22,470,000 T2 HTER) bonds (net of issue costs of HK$2,470,000) 59,916 -
ERXUBRECERMEREEE Net cash inflow from trust receipts and
import loans 27,405 32,633
FEEZATRFMER New block discounting loans raised 9,922 19,765
HEEE Repayment of borrowings (39,236) (61,413)
MEREBE&E Repayment of obligations under finance leases (2,415) (1,514)
BMRFRB (AR ALPR NET CASH INFLOW (OUTFLOW) FROM FINANCING 178,348 (10,510)
DERASEWNZ®N(RD) INCREASE {DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 41,409 (91,421)
FUNRERAEEH CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 454,426 541,136
BESBHZEE EFFECT ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES (5,461) 4,711
EHBSRALSH CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF THE YEAR 35 490,374 454,426




Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended 30 june 2002
BE_SS-FXAZ+BLEEE

1.
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GENERAL

Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 27 March 2002, the Company changed the
domicile of the Company from the Cayman Islands to Bermuda by way of de-
registration in the Cayman Islands and continuation as an exempted company under
the laws of Bermuda (the “Change of Domicile”).

In addition, the Company adopted the Memorandum of Continuance and the Bye-
Laws on 27 March 2002 in substitution for the original Memorandum of Association
and the Articles of Association respectively (the “Adoption”).

Both the Change of Domicile and the Adoption became effective on 11 April 2002.

The Company'’s shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company is an investment holding company. its subsidiaries (the Company and
its subsidiaries are hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally
engaged in sales of general systems products, provision of services and software
licensing, leasing of systems products and investments in telecommunications
networks and e-commerce projects.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS OF
STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE

In the current year, the Group has adopted, for the first time, a number of new and
revised Statements of Standard Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants. Adoption of these SSAPs has led to a number of
changes in the Group’s accounting policies. The revised accounting policies are set
out in note 3.In addition, the new and revised S5APs have introduced additional and
revised disclosure requirements which have been adopted in these financial
statements. Comparative amounts and disclosures for the prior year have been
restated in order to achieve a consistent presentation.

The adoption of these new and revised SSAPs has resulted in the following changes
to the Group's accounting policies that have affected the amounts and disclosures
reported for the current or prior periods.

Dividend proposed or declared after the balance sheet date

In accordance with SSAP 9 (Revised) “Events after the balance sheet date’ dividends
proposed or declared after the balance sheet date but before the financial report
authorised for issue was not recognised as liabilities at the balance sheet date but
are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. The change in accounting
policy has been applied retrospectively, resulting in a prior period adjustment which
increases the Group’s and the Company’s net assets by HK$8,828,000 and
HK$8,900,000 at 1 July 2000 and 1 July 2001 respectively.
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2. RMEFRESTENREER 2. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STATEMENTS OF

—- STANDARD ACCOUNTING PRACTICE - Continued
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Segment reporting

[n the current year, the Group has followed the basis of identification of reportable
segments to that required by SSAP 26 “Segment reporting” Segment disclosures for
the year ended 30 June 2001 have been amended so that they are presented on a
consistent basis.

Provisions

SSAP 28 “Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets” has introduced a
new framework for the recognition of provisions. Provisions are recognised when the
Group has an obligation as a result of a past event which is probable and will result
in an outflow of economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Provision has been recognised based on the management’s best estimate of the
present obligation at the balance sheet date.

Goodwill

In the current year, the Group has adopted SSAP 30 “Business combinations” and has
elected not to restate goodwill previously eliminated against reserves. Accordingly,
goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1 July 2001 is held in reserves and will be
charged to the income statement at the time of disposal of the relevant subsidiary,
or at such time as the goodwill is determined to be impaired. Negative goodwill
arising on acquisition prior to 1 July 2001 will be credited to income at the time of
disposal of the relevant subsidiary.

Goodwill arising on acquisition on or after 1 July 2001 is capitalised and amortised
over its estimated economic useful life, subject to a maximum period of 20 years.
Negative goodwill arising on acquisition on or after 1 July 2001 is presented as a
deduction from assets and will be released to income based on an analysis of the
circumstances from which the balance resulted.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention
and in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. The
principal accounting policies adopted are as follows:

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries made up to 30 June each year.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated income statement from or up to their effective dates of acquisition or
disposal respectively.

All significant inter-company transactions and balances within the Group are
eliminated on consolidation.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in
the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary or an associate at
the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1 July 2001 continues to be held in reserves
and will be charged to the income statement at the time of disposal of the relevant
subsidiary or associate, or at such time as the goodwill is determined to be impaired.

Goodwill arising on acquisition after 1 July 2001 is capitalised and amortised on a
straight line basis over its estimated economic useful life. Goodwill arising on
acquisition of an associate is included within the carrying amount of the associate.
Goodwill arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented separately in the
balance sheet.

Negative goodwili

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the Group’s interest in the fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of a subsidiary or an associate at the date of
acquisition over the cost of acquisition.

Negative goodwill arising on acquisition prior to 1 July 2001 continues to be held in
reserves, and will be credited to income at the time of disposal of the relevant
subsidiary or associate.

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associate after 1 July 2001 is
deducted from the carrying value of that associate. Negative goodwill arising on the
acquisition of subsidiaries after 1 July 2001 is presented separately in the balance
sheet as a deduction from assets. Negative goodwill is released to income based on
an analysis of the circumstances from which the balance resulted. To the extent that
the negative goodwill is attributable to losses or expenses anticipated at the date of
acquisition, it is released to income in the period in which those losses or expenses
arise.The remaining negative goodwill is recognised as income on a straight line
basis over the remaining average useful life of the identifiable acquired depreciable
assets.To the extent that such negative goodwill exceeds the aggregate fair value of
the acquired identifiable non-monetary assets, it is recognised in income
immediately.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Revenue recognition
Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title has been passed.

Service income is recognised when the services are rendered.

Income from licensing is recognised when the relevant licensing agreements are
formally concluded.

Distributions from the Group's investments in e-commerce projects and
telecommunications projects are recognised when the Group's right to receive the
distributions has been established.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from properties under operating
leases, is recognised on a straight line basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis by reference to the principal outstanding
and at the interest rate applicable.

Income from investments in securities is recognised when the Group’s right to
receive payment has been established.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less depreciation and amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses,

Costs incurred by the Group in establishing its telecommunications networks
include, among other things, property and equipment, internally developed and
acquired software, legal organisation costs and the acquisition of required licenses.

Depreciation and amortisation to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment
over their estimated useful lives after taking into account their estimated residue
value, using the straight line method, at the following rates per annum:

Freehold tand Nil
Leasehold land Over the shorter of the remaining
unexpired terms of the relevant leases

or 50 years
Buildings 2-5%
Plant and machinery and 10-50%

telecommunications networks
Furniture and fixtures 20% - 33'/;%
Motor vehicles 25%

Plant and machinery and telecommunications networks are not depreciated until
they are put into commercial use. Should the individual telecommunications
network, completed or under development, become technologically obsolete or
commercially not viable, the carrying value of the télecommunications network will
be written off immediately to the income statement.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Property, plant and equipment - Continued
Assets held under finance leases are depreciated on the same basis as owned assets
over their estimated useful lives or, where shorter, the terms of the leases.

The gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the
difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the income statement.

impairment

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be {ess than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable
amount. An impairment foss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased assets to the Group.
Assets held under finance leases are capitalised at their fair values at the date of
acquisition. The corresponding liability to the lessor, net of interest charges, is
included in the balance sheet as a finance lease obligation of the Group. The finance
costs, which represent the difference between the total leasing commitments and
the fair value of the assets acquired, are charged to the income statement over the
period of the respective leases so as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge on
the remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting period.

All other leases are classified as operating leases and their rentals payable are
charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the term of the
relevant lease.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Systems and networks

Systems and networks are stated at cost less amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Systems and networks represent all direct costs incurred by the Group in setting up
systems and networks, including the cost of equipment, development cost and
subcontracting expenditure. Such assets are recognised only if all of the following
conditions are met:

- an asset is created that can be identified (such as software and new processes);

- it is probable that the asset created will generate future economic benefits;
and

- the development cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Development cost that cannot fulfil the above conditions is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. Systems and networks that fulfil the
above conditions are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated useful
lives, subject to a maximum of five years. Where the recoverable amount of systems
and networks has declined below their carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to reflect the decline in value.

Investments in e-commerce projects
Investments in e-commerce development projects are stated at cost less
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.

Investments in e-commerce projects represent the Group’s investment costs incurred
on internet-based business projects over which the Group receives distributions
from these projects based on an agreed percentage of the net revenue of each
project. The investment costs are written off using the straight line method over the
life of the individual project from the date of commencement of commercial
operations subject to a maximum of five years. Where the recoverable amount of the
investments has declined below their carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to reflect the decline in value,

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the balance sheet of the Company at cost
or carrying value, less any identified impairment loss. Results in subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends received or receivable
during the year.

Investments in telecommunications projects
Investments in telecommunications projects are stated at cost less amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses.



FEEHBE-=

BRRBZRE &

REDEREHEBTREALZAEE
BERES REHERBEERSEFEE
BEEAZRE-ZEBRBBMUINZ
BR EYRLADERERZRA D
BREMEE 2 BEaFER S X AR
ZHBTERRAERBEZEHTERAR
HURERE ERSZAAF)UES
AFREHER-HLLMREZARE
SREFEREE MEEAEEEER
B ARBR BT %

BEARCHH

BEDRCEE AERBRAUNESRS
AR AMBBEN-BRSERZEKE
BEDNTRLAERBENRERETZE
R RESE-

ReEs
BHEREDNRZAHREREAR NS
B E-

RE (FERHMBAERRN) DINERE
BHREBREAE-

REEF (AUETRERKENTHFE
ZEF) IR BREERE BERAG
EURZEEAREEE (BHEER
1)

B ENEATFEEHE MARER
ZHEREBBEDGATBERE ZBHE
Bho

HFE
EHERUBFRZBEERPME-

¥
FEDERARASRFEREIZR
BEANR-RAREALLIEE-

B AR {55
BETRRESSERERL TRINR
fER(E-

BAETIRRESMSIBRZEA DS
B AT

Champion Technology Holdings LimitedAnnual Report 2002

31

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Investments in telecommunications prejects ~ Continued

Investment comprises all direct costs incurred by the Group in fulfilling its
obligations under the agreements, including the supply of equipment which on
expiration of the agreements will not revert to the Group. Amortisation is provided
to write off the Group's investments in telecommunications, paging and mobile
telephone projects outside Hong Kong using the straight line method over the
remaining life of the agreement of the individual project from the date of
commencement of commercial operations or the estimated useful life of the
contributed equipment, whichever is the shorter, but subject to a maximum of five
years.Where the recoverable amount of the investments has declined below their
carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to reflect the decline in value.

Investments in associates

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the financial
statements using the equity method of accounting.The carrying amount of such
interest is reduced to recognise any identified impairment loss in the value of
individual investments.

investments in securities
Investments in securities are recognised on a trade-date basis and are initially
measured at cost.

Investments other than held-to-maturity debt securities are classified as investment
securities and other investments.

Investment securities, which are securities held for an identified long term strategic
purpose, are measured at subsequent reporting dates at cost, as reduced by any
impairment loss that is other than temporary.

Other investments are measured at fair value, with unrealised gains and losses
included in the net profit or loss for the year.

Patents
Patents costs are written off to the income statement in the year of acquisition.

inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is calculated
using the first-in, first-out method.

Convertible bonds

Convertible bonds are regarded as liabilities unless conversion actually occurs.

The costs incurred in connection with the issue of convertible bonds are charged
immediately to the income statement.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - Continued

Taxation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year after adjusting for items
which are non-assessable or disallowed. Certain items of income and expense are
recognised for tax purposes in a different accounting period from that in which they
are recognised in the financial statements. The tax effect of the resulting timing
differences, computed under the liability method, is recognised as deferred taxation
in the financial statements to the extent that it is probable that a liability or an asset
will crystallise in the foreseeable future.

Research and development costs

Research costs are charged to the income statement in the year in which they are
incurred. Development costs are charged to the income statement in the year in
which it is incurred except where a major project is undertaken and it is reasonably
anticipated that development costs will be recovered through future commercial
activity. Such development costs are deferred and written off over the life of the
project from the date of commencement of commercial operation subject to a
maximum of five years,

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the approximate rates ruling on
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are re-translated at the rates ruling on the balance sheet date. Gains and
losses arising on exchange are dealt with in the income statement.

On consolidation, the financial statements of the operations outside Hong Kong are
translated at the rates ruling on the balance sheet date. All exchange differences
arising on translation are dealt with in the translation reserve,

Retirement benefit cost
Payments to defined contribution schemes are charged as expenses as they fall due.

The expected costs of providing pensions for a defined benefit scheme, as calculated
periodically by professionally qualified actuaries, are charged to the income
statement so as to spread the costs over the service lives of employees in the scheme
operated by the Group in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and expected future pensionable payroll.

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Turnover represents the net amounts received and receivable for goods sold and
services provided by the Group to outside customers, licensing fees received and
receivable and distributions received and receivable from the Group's investments in
telecommunications and e-commerce projects during the year.



4. BRGROBER-=
(a) BESE

4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT iNFORMATION - Continued

{a) Business segments

AREEEE FAEEZEBES R

BRZEELEE - HE-RER
En RERBERITRTE 2
AoERLEREVEBETARER

For management purposes, the Group is currently organised into four main
operating business - sales of general systems products, provision of services
and software licensing, leasing of systems products and investments in
telecommunications networks and e-commerce projects.These businesses are

BzREBE-NEEBNEAEREE the basis on which the Group reports its primary segment information.
ARERZRELE
Sales of Provision of investments in
general services and Leasing of telecommuni  Investments in
systems software systems cations e-commerce
products licensing products projects projects Consolidated
BE-% BUBER BARE BRER B¥E%
RRER BENAE 33 b4 ¥ HEZHA &e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HiK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET AR FAT FATL FEx FET
BEZSSZERAZSTALER  Year ended 30 June 2002
TURNOVER
External and total revenue 1,063,299 328,984 41,867 137950 61,288 1,633,388
24 RESULTS
EcEE Seqment result 147430 160,113 (5432) 43,185 (88,374) 256,902
Dividend income 1,346
Interest income 13,108
Unallocated corporate expenses (42,025)
Profit from operations 229,331
Finance costs (31,071)
Profit before taxation 198,260
Taxation (421)
Profit before minority interests 197,833
Minority interests (27,263)
Net profit for the year 170,570
As at 30 June 2002
ASSETS
Segment assets 557,033 936,929 43,345 724,817 874,762 3,136,886
Interest in an associate 46,500
Investments in securities 126,958
Unallocated corporate assets 631,525
Consolidated total assets 3,941,869
LIABILITIES
Segment fiabilities 53,395 27,397 14,548 34,506 9,360 139,206
Unallocated corporate liabilities 532,035
Consolidated total liabilities 671,241
OTHER INFORMATION
Capital additions of property, plant
and equipment 1,485 3,703 24712 - - 13,660
Capital additions of systems & networks 73,625 19 - - - 73,644
Capital additions of telecommunications
projects - - - 70,363 - 70,363
Capital addition of deposits 85,250 245,148 - - 130,800 461,198
Depreciation and amortisation 42,900 76,337 6,254 103,411 170,778 399,680
Impairment loss recognised for
investments in securities - - - - 3,887 3,887
Gain on disposal of interast in
e-commerce projects - - - - 26,213 26,213
Gainf(toss) on disposal of property, plant
and equipment 35 (11) 209) - - (185)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

FEREME ()

4, BRORSERE-= 4. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION - Continued
(a) ESE & (a) Business segments - Continued
Salesof Provision of Investments in
general services and Leasing of telecommuni- Investments in
systems software systems cations e-commerce
products i products prolects projects Consolidated
BE-R EEZL g7 ETEE
ERER Ed th EBZBRE g8
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000
i TET TET TR TER
BE-ZT2-F/AZTREEE  Yearended30 June 2001
11 1] TURNOVER
ME External and total revenue 946,053 377,953 46,703 121470 18,600 1510,779
] RESULTS
HERE Segment result 194515 185,601 3,464 58,914 87,927 355,567
Dividend income 1,160
Interest income 19,946
RoEROER Unallocated corporate expenses (39,589)
2EEy Profit from operations 337,084
BERE Finance costs {40812}
# Profit before taxation 296,272
EE Taxation (584)
Profit before minority interests 295,688
Minority interests 43,109)
Net profit for the year 252,579
——
RZEF~FXAZTE As at 30 June 2001
RE ASSETS
SHREE Segment assets 281,970 829,830 43920 751,044 892,490 2,799,254
NRELEZER Interest in an associate 4,500
EELE Investments in securities 11,560
FORAREE Unallocated corporate assets 587,648
& Consolidated total assets 3,444,962
————
AR LIABILITIES
SESE Segment liabilities 40,220 30317 12621 34,506 - 117664
NELERE Unallocated corporate liabilities 483,199
GAERE Consolidated total liabilities 600,863
———
fRE OTHER INFORMATION
NE BERREZALGE Capital additions of property, plant
and equipment 10,910 4389 3618 - - 18,917
Capital additions of systems & networks - - 2 - - 2
Capital additions of interest in
e-Commerce projects - - - - 200416 200416
ERERZERARE Capital additions of telecommunications
projects - - - 33807 - 33,807
B2 Capital addition of deposits - BL974 - 15,500 8250 71724
FES Depreciation and amortisation 32,774 91,582 6,211 58,345 112,570 301482
HEE Gain ondispasal of interest in
e-commerce projects - - - - 4,669 4,669
e - Loss on disposal of property, plant &
equipment - - 399 - - 399
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4. BEURATEH -2 4, TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATIORN - Continued
(b) HESE (b) Geographicai segments
(i THREINEZEBRHWENIS {i) The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue by
Bz WAR (THER geographical market, irrespective of the origin of the goods/services:

ARig 2 HR)

Revenue by Profit
geographicai segment from operations
BREESENIFIZEA HEER
year ended 30 June year ended 30 June
BREXA=+BLEEER BEXAZ+HLEE
2002 2001 2002 2001
-s2s —EE-F —38ZF —EBE-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000
Fax THR FHET FHET
PEARANE- People’s Republic of China,
BEEE including Hong Kong
RIRFY and Macau 1,298,434 1,177,408 203,489 291,790
B Europe 243,881 239,221 (6,436) 17,739
Hig Others 91,073 94,150 32,298 27,555
FAEs Consolidated total 1,633,388 1,510,779 | 229,33% 337,084
(i) TR FEBRUWETIS (i) The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment assets, and
BOoZHBREEREE MR capital additions to property, plant and equipment, systems and networks,
ME BERRE ZHRLEHE interest in e-commerce projects and telecommunications projects,
REDBETHERBAES analysed by the geographical market to which the assets are located:
BBZERRENN:
Carrying amount
of segment assets Capital additions
SENEZBHEHE BEFE
30.6.2002 30.6.2001 [30.6.2002 30.6.2001
BB HE —RE-F b+ 1 - 3 g
~A=+H RA=+8 ~B=+8 ~R=+8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FBxT TR FRT TET
R ARAME People’s Republic of China,
BREEE including Hong Kong
FORPS and Macau 3,005,908 2,747,790 537,233 475,106
B Europe 175,862 187,216 10,338 16,523
Hib Others 759,099 509,956 71,294 33,257
FABE Consolidated total 3,941,869 3,444,962 618,865 524,886
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PHmEHE (8

5. RpERA 5. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2002 2001
i Jamg IERF—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FBT FHT

THMWATIFIAREEWRAR:  Included in other operating income is net investment

income as follows:
BHREZRESA Dividend income from investments in securities 1,346 1,160
MBTEAREEMAERZME  Interest earned on bank deposits and balances 13,108 19,946
4 B ER Recovery of bad debts - 939
e FEEEWEBMIERZ Recovery of deposits paid in connection with
B iR & telecommunications projects written off in prior year - 9,000
6. Rt E>XH 6. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

2002 2001
a3 . 3 —ERE—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
REHRENMERZAEBSR Impairment loss recognised for investments in securities 3,887 -
ES PSR SR € Systems and networks written off 2,115 -
EBURERRZBE Allowance for other receivables 1,051 -
B 7,053 -
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BERER 7. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS
2002 2001
—eszs ZEE—~F
HK$’c00 HK$’000
FRT FET
HERRNDMER: Profit from operations has been arrived at after charging:
Z2EES (HEu) Directors’ remuneration (Note (i)) 26,283 18,661
BINA (TEEEEHS) Staff costs excluding directors’ remuneration 113,736 98,352
IRRERE R R (B EEGH) Retirement benefit scheme contributions (Note {(ii)) 4,489 3,269
BIXEEHE Total staff costs 144,508 120,282
BEFrEEEARAZEY Amortisation of investments in e-commerce projects 170,778 112,570
BREARECEH Amortisation of investments in telecommunications
projects 103,411 58,345
EGRAmzES Amortisation of systems and networks 39,520 1,290
wE: Depreciation on:
BEAE Owned assets 84,976 128,317
BEHECRE Assets under finance leases 995 960
399,680 301,482
HEaEe Auditors’ remuneration 3,745 3,441
BHATFEZRAR Cost of inventories recognised 470,249 432,028
PEDE - HERRBZES Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 185 399
REBEEREENZ Minimum lease payments paid under operating leases
BESEMNRERE: in respect of:
AEDE Rented premises 5,279 5,258
e REE Machinery and equipment 6,191 4,792
REEA: and after crediting:
HERERERRERER Rental income from leasing of plant and machinery
FigzHESWA and telecommunications networks 41,867 46,703
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EHmSHE (8

7. EREBF-&7 7. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS - Continued
e Notes:
(i) FRENABRMSIWE {i) Information regarding directors’ and employees’ emoluments
2002 2001
it 1t e
HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT TEx
Ex Directors
BUIERITHEEZHES Fees to independent non-executive directors 145 100
FRITUEB I HMBME: Other emoluments to non-executive directors:
HeREMER Salaries and other benefits - -
WATEZEAMNS: Other emoluments to executive directors:
HFaRhEEER Salaries and other benefits 4,391 4,443
&I{”E&'fﬁf’*ﬁiz g8 Performance related incentive payments 21,699 14,090
BRI E DR Retirement benefit scheme contribution 48 28
26,283 18,661
BRI R-—ANAFER=Z+E K in addition to the above, on 30 April 1999, an aggregate of 30,000,000 shares options of
A E)E T HAE30,000,0003 R0 FH the Company were granted to certain directors at an initial exercise price of HK$0.17328
ZHEEE TENASR017328E . per share. Following the bonus issue as set out in note 30, the exercise price was adjusted
REITHIE30M B AR R 176 to HK$0.08664 per share. These share options were lapsed on 29 April 2002. On 8 February
el ﬁé]ﬁz*’?;ﬁﬁo 08664 T Z FIEAX 2000, an aggregate of 2,000,000 share options of the Company were granted to certain
HERZFZRZFMEAZ B XA directors at an exercise price of HK$0.4656 per share. No share option was exercised

MIZRSFEZANR KABE T
FHL 2,000,000 AR E 2B 1T
EMATR0.4656B - ENIWETM
ERECETE - REANIT0M#EZ
MIRRER RN GHE BIREHE B
& 7£2,000,00013 FE 2 160,00017 - 47
BEAERSZE T

R—AANEZRHE -2EHLER
5,000,000 11{EE A ER03712BLY
ERLOERATERE-FBRAUS
RLRNERARAZHMERE RABH
EHS7RRE U ERMECR ST~
FZAMBSRR MFAESERLEIE
B

MEZHE (TREBRENS)
FIGEED

NET

- 1,000,000 T

1,000,001 % 7T —1,500,0005% T
16,000,001 7T — 16,500,000/ 7T
23,500,001 7T - 24,000,0007 7T

during the year. Following the bonus issued and the share consolidation as set out in note
30, the number of share options was adjusted from an aggregate of 2,000,000 to 160,000

at an exercise price of HK$5.82 per share.

On 4 February 1998, 5,000,000 share options of Kantone Holdings Limited, a 57% owned
subsidiary of the Company, were granted to a director at an exercise price of HK$0.3712
per share. These options were lapsed on 4 February 2001 and no further share options

were granted during the year.

Emoluments of the directors, excluding the share option benefits, were within the

following bands:

Number of director(s)

L £ PN .

Nil - HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000
HK$16,000,001 - HK$16,500,000
HK$23,500,001 - HK$24,000,000

2002
bt 3 it

7
1
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7. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS - Continued

Notes: - Continued

(i) Information regarding directors’ and employees’ emoluments - Continued

Employees

The five highest paid individuals of the Group inciuded two {(2001: two) directors of the
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out above. The emoluments of the
remaining three (2001: three) highest paid employees of the Group, not being a director of
the Company, are as follows:

2002 2001

—28e=F —EBE 4

HKS’000 HK$'000

FRT FHET

FHBHREGER Salaries and other benefits 3,703 3,332
RRBNERIEK Retirement benefit scheme contributions 729 322
4,432 3,654

RIZFFF-_FNA ANBEESHE
Gz HP 7 (PIARBESR) ER
1,000,000 KR 2 SEEARIE (TEESHR
0.4656F Lo EN W WM BRED B
TE-RETHEI0OMB s MRIESR
et BREHEH/AA
1,000,000{3 BEZ=80,00013 MIT{EE
AERse2HE T

R—AANE_AGA ANEISEHE
Bz R (WA R EE) R
12,000,000 BB EEFR L FHRE-
TEEESR3N2ET - HEBBER
RZFE-F_FNAKE TFERE
EEEAERE-

LEEEZ M CTRARRARZ N
FTIIBE

# —1,000,000# ¢

1,000,001 7T —1,500,0004 7T
1,500,001 # 7T — 2,000,000/ 7T
2,000,001 7% — 2,500,000 7L

On 8 February 2000, 1,000,000 share options of the Company were granted to an
employee of the five highest, not being a director of the Company, at an exercise price of
HK$0.4656 per share. No share option was exercised during the year. Following the bonus
issue and the share consolidation as set out in note 30, the number of share options was
adjusted from an aggregate of 1,000,000 to 80,000 at an exercise price of HK$5.82 per
share.

On 4 February 1998, 12,000,000 share options of Kantone Holdings Limited were granted
to two employees of the five highest, not being a director of the Company, at an exercise
price of HK$0.3712 per share. These options were lapsed on 4 February 2001 and no

Y further share options were granted during the year.

Emoluments of these employees, excluding the share option benefits, were within the
following bands:

Number of employee(s)
BRAE

Nif = HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000
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FEMENT ()

7. ERA¥ = 7. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS - Continued

Bfi2x: — & Notes: - Continued

(i) BAFEAHTER (ii) Retirement benefit scheme contributions

2002 2001
=t T 3F oI '
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET

ML 2 FEEPGTE 2 Retirement benefit scheme contributions to the Group's
IRRRRRE SI4GR defined contribution scheme 692 672
BRI Z B Less: Forfeited contributions - -
692 672

AR 2 ERE AR AT Retirement benefit scheme contributions to the Group’s
ZRAER AR defined benefit scheme 3,845 2,625
4,537 3,297

EEMHtRNE Defined contribution scheme

AEHETETFTHEQGAREMHER Certain subsidiaries of the Group have a retirement benefit scheme covering a portion of
B -HEREBEME N ZEHTZE their employees. The assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
ERARNMZBESREE LFRAH funds under the control of an independent trustee.

BURHEAEMZESA-

B AR 2 BARER N ER AR
BB IR EEZ L ENABES
EHMZHR-WERRSEARERNEH
IR Z AL AR REWARER 2

The retirement benefit scheme contributions charged to the income statement represent
contributions payable to the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
scheme. Where there are employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions, the contribution payable by the Group is reduced by the amount of

B R IR R Z Bk

RESI R 87 EE BRI T E
2SR UL F A A IR R
REERMNER (ZFR—-F:18)-

BRI ES AL FEERER
REZZHASARERSERIER
e (fans))il-asaEERa
Brandr MRMENEAERER
BRENEHUAMEEZ L ERENE
At Z AR

forfeited contributions.

At the balance sheet date, there were no forfeited contributions which arose upon
employees leaving the scheme and which are available to reduce the contributions
payable in the future years (2001: nil).

Commencing from December 2000, the Group enralled all eligible employees in Hong
Kong into a mandatory provident fund (the “MPF") scheme. The retirement benefit cost of
the MPF scheme charged to the consolidated income statement represents contributions
to the MPF scheme by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the MPF scheme.
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7. PROFIT FROM CPERATIONS - Continued

Notes: - Continued

{i#)

Retirement benefit scheme contributions - Continued

Defined benefit scheme

Certain subsidiaries of the Group operates a self-administered, funded pension scheme.
The scheme provides defined pension benefits related to service, and final earnings and
capital sums on death. Membership is optional for all staff paid monthly and aged over 21
years.

Contributions to the scheme are charged to the income statement so as to spread the cost
of pensions over employees’ working lives with the Group. The contributions are
determined by a qualified actuary on the basis of triennial valuations using the projected
unit method. The most recent valuation was at 1 January 2002.The assumptions which
have the most significant effect on the results of the valuation are those relating to the
rate of return on investments and the rates of increase in salaries, pensions and share
dividends. It was assumed that the investment returns would be 7!/2% per annum, that
salary increase would average 4'/.% per annum with an addition for promotion increase,
that the guaranteed minimum pensions accruing after 5 April 1997 would increase at the
rate of 23/4% per annum, and that price inflation would average 23/:% per annum.

The most recent actuarial valuation showed that the market value of the scheme’s assets
was HK$161,483,000 and that the actuarial value of these assets represented 69% of the
benefits that had accrued to members. The shortfall of HK$50,311,000 is to be cleared over
the estimated remaining service period of the current membership of 11 years.

8. BERZX 8. FINANCE COSTS
2002 2001
ZRBE —EE-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FRBT FER

RITREREREZNR: Interest on bank and other borrowings
-RAEFREHEERE - wholly repayable within five years 28,050 36,906
- BEREFREREE - not wholly repayable within five years 227 283
BEEECHBER Finance charges on finance leases 324 423
AHBBREF 2 BITAR Issue costs of convertible bonds 2,470 -
ERETHER Loan arrangement fee - 3,200
31,071 40,812
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10.

Bk (8

BnE 9. TAXATION
2002 2001
- 1. Jot - 3 —EE-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET
BEXH(ER) £ The charge (credit) comprises:
EREMEH Hong Kong Profits Tax
—REE - current year 94 827
- BAEEZTREE - underprovision in prior years 374 -
- BEEEZHERE - overprovision in prior years - (940)
Hih R A ERIE Taxation in other jurisdictions (44) 701
424 588
FEIEFIE (F1i%29) Deferred taxation (note 29) 3 (4)
427 584

FREMEHIUREER 2 BT ERHY

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16% on the estimated assessable profits

EFR16% R EGTE- KW AR
REBEDBEENIZHEEERAZHER
HE-

UBBREREZRERTEEAR DM
FERSEm BB WE - MRS T8 A
EHSERNERHIEME LA R
ZHEe

AEEELEREFEHNME29 -

derived from Hong Keng. Taxation in other jurisdictions is calculated at the rates
prevailing in the respective jurisdictions.

The low effective tax rate is attributable to the fact that a substantial portion of the
Group’s profit neither arises in, nor is derived from, Hong Kong and is accordingly not
subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax and is not subject to taxation in any other
Jjurisdictions.

Details of deferred taxation for the year are set out in note 29.

... 10.DIVIDENDS
2007 | 2001
—zE_% —ETR—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FiEIT
R EA R Z 5K Final dividend proposed in scrip form equivalent to
KRR SAHERERR2.55 I HK2.5 cents (2001: HKQ.15 cents) per share, with a
(ZFEZ—F:0a58M) - cash option
TiEER S 14,245 8,900
EUBREFTRENZHRERE  Interim dividend paid in scrip form equivalent to
HEERF%0.0625F L HK0.0625 cents (2001: HK0.125 cents) per share, with a
(ZFE—F 012584 cash option
ERRS 8,893 7,386
LEEEZTREE Underprovision in prior year 241 -~
23,379 16,286

IER_EEBREREREDER
CTEBR-CEXNAZFBZEBITRMD
569,784,884 % BE KT E -

The proposed final dividend for 2002 is based on 569,784,884 shares in issue at 30
June 2002.



11. 8REH

BErRBEEERENZHETIRT

B E

11.EARNINGS PER SHARE

data:

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following

2002 2001
I88s ZEE-F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FERT FER
R EEXERABMZ AN Earnings for the purpose of calculating basic earnings
' per share 170,570 252,579
LREMBETBEESE: Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares:
HRERESZ RS Interest on convertible bonds 103 -
RERESTREMNAE Adjustment to the share of result of a subsidiary
EfBomEEmiaEs based on dilution of its earnings per share - (949)
A EREEERAT 2 BH Earnings for the purpose of calculating diluted
earnings per share L 170,673 251,630

Number of shares

Bip@ B
(In"000)
(F5%)
2002 2001
-2 o - ZEE-F
RSt EEXEGREFZ NE Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of
T HE calculating basic earnings per share 530,91¢ 471,630
ERRCECRSRE: Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares
HERRE Options 459 529
AREE Warrants 2,813 288
AR ER Convertible bonds 3,646 -
6,918 817
ST EREEERBM2 mnE Weighted average number of shares for the purpose of
FHRGOHE calculating diluted earnings per share 537,837 472,447

BEZTRER

Diluted earnings per share

31.73 centsfll

53.26 centsill

A BERAMZNETIHER -
E-FE+-_R+ARZURERE T
EoFERANBZRNDEATRAE #

EERME30 -

30.
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The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes of calculating
earnings per share has been adjusted for the bonus issue of shares on 19 December
2001 and the share consolidation on 4 May 2002, details of which are set out in note
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BIREREME ()

122. 9K -BEREMN 12.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and
machinery
and tele- Furniture
Land and communications and Motor
buildings networks fixtures vehicles Total
THERT ERERS RARKR RE a
ERRAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHRT TER TER TER TET
£ ] THE GROUP
BEd CosT
RIBE-—%+A-F At 1 July 2001 56,779 958,938 15,295 11,506 1,042,518
EABE Currency realignment 1330 20123 - - 21,453
HE Additions - 12,384 168 1,108 13,660
BARE Transferred 10 inventories - {334) - - {334y
HE Disposals - (15,634) - (140) {15,774)
RoSE-EX5Z+8 At 30 June 2002 58,109 975,477 15,463 12,474 1,061,523
g DEPRECIATION
RIFE-£48-8 At 1 July 2001 12614 779,247 13,842 10,630 816,333
ER@E Currency realignment 228 15,503 - - 15,731
FNEE Provided for the year 1,809 83,178 523 461 85,971
HEHR Eliminated on disposals - (15,348) - (73) (15421}
RZEE-EXAZ1H At 30 June 2002 14,651 862,580 14,365 11,018 902,614
BESE NET BOOK VALUES
RIFE-EXFEZ1H At 30 June 2002 43,458 112,897 1,098 1,456 158,809
RZZEZF-Ex8Z+H At 30 June 2001 44,165 179,691 1,453 876 226,185
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12.PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - Continued

THE GROUP
k340
2002 2001
~ee—s —EE—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAL
FERBZYEERER The net book values of the Group's property
EEBE: interests comprise:
RERUNMEREZ Freehold properties held outside Hong Kong 13,917 13,155
KAHEB RN ME: Leasehold properties:
REEBREZRNME Held in Hong Kong
—REEH - long leases 20,345 21,422
— s ERY - medium term leases 3,653 3,794
REBLSMEEF B2 REWE  Held outside Hong Kong
-REREY - long leases 1,110 1,148
— REREI LY - medium term leases 4,433 4,646
43,458 44,165
EREEESEZERES Net book value of plant and machinery and
RERBRZEREEE telecommunications networks held under finance leases 1,978 12,991
SEHLLERERAEEEN The Group leases equipment to customers on operating
TEP-FHSBMZEEEE leases terms. The net book value of such equipment,
ERREERE #ER which is included in plant and machinery and
FAAEAN ZAHMT: telecommunications networks, is as follows:
BEEEM (XA Customer equipment at cost 99,035 103,773
B RHIE Less; Accumulated depreciation R 80,893 78,039
REFEE Net book value 18,142 25,734

FEBNR_EE-_FE A=1+HEGTF -

HEA8,952,000EB L (BT —4:
7,932,000 L) ZETHHREFEER
BTFROT EAXERESZRITHE
ZER

At 30 June 2002, certain land and buildings of the Group with a net book value of
HK$8,952,000 (2001: HK$7,932,000) were pledged to a bank as security for banking
facilities granted to the Group.

Champion Technology Holdings LimitedAnnual Report 2002
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FEwENE (B

13. R iR A8 13.SYSTEMS AND NETWORKS
THE GROUP
-3 3. |
2002 2001
etk —EE -
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT THET
BRE* CosT
F=0 At beginning of the year 670,717 670,695
wE Additions 73,644 22
EEEL Transferred from deposits 259,253 -
BAEHRIER Transferred to telecommunications projects (191,413) -
g Write-off (3,525) -
F At end of the year 808,676 670,717
3] AMORTISATION
E3) At beginning of the year 1,531 241
REFRE Provided for the year 39,520 1,290
iE Ay Eliminated on write-off (1,410) -
FiE At end of the year 39,641 1,531
RE P E NET BOOK VALUE
FE At end of the year 769,035 669,186
BRPTEFREBEZ Net book value of systems and networks under
RmFEE development 427,990 668,723

EGhBReRY AR AHEREAE
HERARRBEZMEEERSN-TREAZE
FREBRENEREREBRERARRET
BHEEEDRZRAF TUEHE-

Systems and networks include all direct costs incurred in the setting up and
development of internet based knowledge systems and networks. The Group’s
systems and networks are amortised over the estimated economic useful lives of the
projects from the date of commencement of commercial operations subject to a

maximum of five years.



4. MBARZHEE

14.INVESTMERNTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

47

THE COMPARNY
- 308]|

2002 2001
28 F —BE—F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHBT FRET

REBLTWRE Listed shares in Hong Kong
—RAAE - at cost 58,949 98,949

FE TR Unlisted shares

—REREE - at carrying value 107,847 107,947
~RRRE - at cost 10 10
RNBATZEE Investments in subsidiaries 206,306 206,906
R mE Market value of listed shares 99,534 187,311

TR CEREENAFEEEREE
EfBATINAZEREEREZNER
SoEREESEARSE. Group under the group reorganisation.
ERTEZENBLAR_TETFA
A=-+EZEEERNME0 -

The carrying value of the unlisted shares is based on the book values of the
underlying net assets of the subsidiaries at the time they became members of the

Details of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2002 are set out in note 40.

15. EFHHEACEE 15.INTEREST IN E-COMMERCE PROJECTS
THE GROUP
5@
2002 2001
TEEE ZEE—F
HIK$'000 HK$'000
FBT TET

HRFE CosT
=17 At beginning of the year 820,144 713,116
B ES Transferred from deposits 166,315 -
wE Additions - 200,416
i Disposals (102,106) (93,388)
F& At end of the year 884,253 820,144
it AMORTISATION
F40 At beginning of the year 112,570 -
REFERB Provided for the year 170,778 112,570
HE MR Eliminated on disposals (30,031) -
T8 At end of the year 253,317 112,570
ERTERE NET BOOK VALUE
EhE ' At end of the year 631,036 707,574

Champion Technology Holdings LimitedAnnual Report 2002
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15. RFRARFAZHME -4

AEERESETURBRETTEE
BE -HERBEIANHR205F FEE
REMERARER LNERE ZBA
BEZBEESLBRESR-BL AR
EREFHEEE ZREEENEA A
BueE R AR 2 G REEES

16.

BEEREME (8)

15.INTEREST IN E-COMMERCE PROJECTS - Continued

The Group has entered into agreements with third parties to invest in e-commerce
projects. These agreements have contract terms of 20 years over which the Group
has the right to receive distributions based’on an agreed percentage of the net
revenue of each of these projects.The Group’s interest in these e-commerce projects
is therefore amortised over the estimated useful lives of the projects from the date of
commencement of commercial operations subject to a maximum of five years.

BERETUEN-
ERGECZHES 16.INTEREST IN TELECOMMUNICATIONS PROJECTS
THE GROUP
xEM
2002 2001
bt -1 Jong- 2 ZBER-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET

4% 31 CQOsT
E4) At beginning of the year 756,293 722,563
wRE Additions 70,363 33,807
A RABBREL Transferred from systems and networks 191,413 -
Rekd Transferred from deposits 15,500 -
Y Write-off (264) (77)
E4E At end of the year 1,033,305 756,293
iR AMORTISATION
F4 At beginning of the year 446,680 388,335
RNEEBE Provided for the year 103,411 58,345
F i At end of the year 550,091 446,680
MR NET BOOK VALUE
F it At end of the year 483,214 309,613




16.

17.

BREEZHE -5
AEERAZEBUE=FINLRE
RERNIMEERBEYRB RBYZ
URADEEBABR-BEAFLET
ZETE RESHENRERE B2
SERIGHER Y FAREETEER
TREMF-Bl ZEEREREEZ
BRETRARERRBI AU EAEH
BHEMAREZRMEH 2 BRSBTS
(WREZERE HEZERT) MEBH
FEAZSBETREHTEBATHE
ZEFRRFRABEE-

REMBEERN AEEERESE
Erelz@uEr GRERNBEE AR
TR ERTEEEHRBEZ DR
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16.INTEREST iN TELECOMMUNICATIONS PROJECTS - Continued

The Group has entered into agreements with independent third parties to invest in
paging operations and assist in the setting up of mobile telephone communication
networks outside Hong Kong.The agreements have lives of 5 to 13 years and any
equipment contributed by the Group under the agreements will not revert to the
Group on expiration of these agreements. The Group’s interest in these
telecommunications projects is therefore amortised over the estimated useful lives
of the contributed equipment or the remaining lives of the agreements from the
date of commencement of commercial operations, whichever is the shorter, but
subject to a maximum of five years. Contributed equipment does not include pagers
or mobile telephone hand-sets which are sold separately by the Group.

In return for the assistance offered by the Group, the Group is entitled to a pre-
determined share of operating profits which varies from project to project during
the lives of the above-mentioned agreements.

REBIEAFZHEE 17. INFTEREST [N AN ASSOCIATE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
FHEA F4H

2002 2001 2002 2001
—IB_E —EE—F 21> S - 3 —EE—F
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FET FHET T#T
JELMRD EXEE Unlisted shares, at cost - - 284,000 284,000
EEERE Share of net assets - - - -
- - 284,000 284,000
PR 4 N BB Amount due from an associate 48,500 46,500 46,500 46,500
46,500 46,500 330,500 330,500

FBRBELELFARHESEER R RE
BTERB-EE2R A REFATER
BEARG-—FAREE-BEL ZE2RE
FIAZERENEE-

RIBB_FRE=Z+8 FEBZH

Name of company
LEIRE

Project Technology Limited
("Project Technology”)

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed
repayment terms. In the opinion of the directors, the amount will not be repaid
within one year from the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the amount is shown as a

non-current asset.

Particulars of the Group’s associate at 30 June 2002 are as follows:

Proportion of
nominal value of

Place of issued capital directly
incorporation held by the Company Principal activities
ELEHERH
Gk AR S Hh B ZERTRIEELHA FERE
British Virgin Islands 40% Provision of e-commerce
HBLEDRES services
RUEBTEHERY

Champion Technology Holdings LimitedAnnual Report 2002
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FEREWE (8

18. 1 & 18.DEPOSITS
ERUTEHREERMZRSE: Deposits were paid in connection with projects relating to the following:
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
RN FNH
2002 2001 2002 2001
b2k ZEE-=F ok 1. Sk —EE-F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET FBT FEX
R REE Systems and networks 409,293 224,223 - -
EERER Internet operations 130,800 166,315 111,425 -
BRIER Telecommunications projects - 129,434 - -
540,093 519,972 111,425 -
19.BHHBR 19.INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
Investment Other
securities investment Total
BRES KR 1]
2002 2001 2002 2001 2002 2001
ZS2IE | “EE-F | Z98Zf | —ZTE-F | I9%°F | -TE-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FET TERT TET FET FRT TER
e 1 THE GROUP
EEMRAEES Unlisted equity securities 126,958 11,560 2 2 126,960 11,562
REBRENSWZ Carrying value of investments
BHREREE: in securities analysed for
reporting purposes as:
RE Current - - 2 2 2
ERE Non-current 126,958 11,560 - - 126,958 11,560
126,958 11,560 2 2 126,960 11,562
ELFH THE COMPANY
ELETRAEES Unlisted equity securities 118,560 - - - 118,560 -
REREHSHZ Carrying value of investments
ERBEFIREREE in securities analysed for
reporting purposes as
non-current 118,560 - - - 118,560 -
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20. 58] 20.INVENTORIES
THE GROUP
E. 3
2002 2001
—88-s —ER-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FHET
J=E S Raw materials 27,337 19,690
EHE Work in progress 3,930 13,359
SR Finished goods 18,469 22,965
49,736 56,014
ERAES)H Stated at cost 46,545 52,618
RBRREEN D Stated at net realisable value 3,191 3,396
49,736 56,014
21. BERERAMBER 21.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
R-ZFF-_E~B=1+8 BEYUEIR At 30 June 2002, the balance of trade and other receivables included trade
HuBRR 2 ABT01E314,494,000% receivables of HK$314,494,000 (2001: HK$296,259,000). The aged analysis of trade
(=B E—5 296,259,000 7T) & receivables at the reporting date is as follows:
WEZER BRESEINEBESEH
ZEREANET:
THE GROUP
E 3
2002 2001
k<=~ o - 3 ZEE-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FaxT TR
0—60H 0 - 60 days 258,668 268,997
61—90H 61 - 90 days 31,308 10,005
91—1808 91 - 180 days 11,414 14,083
>180H > 180 days 13,104 3,174
314,494 296,259
REBREEHECESESEERE- The Group maintains a well-defined credit policy regarding its trade customers
REEEERR BREARERZEE 1T dependent on their credit worthiness, nature of services and products, industry
RSB RTHERTE F3021808 2 practice and condition of the market with credit period ranging from 30 to 180 days.
EEH-
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MRS HE (B)

22. ER - BITEGRAS 22.DEPOSITS, BANK BALANCES AND CASH
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
TN x2F

2002 2001 2002 2001
bt 1. oy 2 ZTE-F a1 Jomg.- 2 —TE-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET Fax FHET
EREFR Interest bearing deposits 586,073 551,547 37,304 18,627
WITEFRBRS Bank balances and cash 39,928 14,205 9,155 4
626,001 565,752 46,459 18,631

EARAEAMBIRR 23.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

23.

24,

RIBR-_EXA=Z+TE BRESZR
EHibBE R 2 8RR B15521,237,000/8 70
(ZTZ—F:17,922,0008 L) Z Eff

BRI BNESZEIRBERERZ

At 30 June 2002, the balance of trade and other payables included trade payables of
HK$21,237,000 (2001: HK$17,922,000). The aged analysis of trade payables at the
reporting date is as follows:

BRI T
THE GROUP
%M
2002 2001
fond 1. gt & —BT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER T
0—60E 0 - 60 days 13,934 11,809
61—908 61 - 90 days 2,576 2,484
91—180H 91 - 180 days 3,754 2,564
>180F > 180 days 973 1,065
21,237 17,922
REEN 24. WARRANTY PROVISION
THE GROUP
E Y.
2002 2001
a1 —ERE—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FHIT
F 1) At beginning of the year 1,669 3,595
EREE Currency realignment 217 (241)
REFREIIBE Additional provision in the year 3,588 1,324
EEREE Utilisation of provision (3,515) (3,009)
F At end of the year 1,959 1,669

REEFRESERBBEEREER
HEBREERZBR ML BEREM
RETZNREARENMEFAEEET
TR Z = o

The warranty provision represents the management’s best estimate of the Group's
liability under 12 month warranties granted on manufactured products, based on
prior experience and industry average for defective products.
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25. BiTHR 25.BANK BORROWINGS
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
k3710 k. 35

20902 2001 2002 2001
bl =12 k3 —EE- —28- —BEE—=
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
FRT FET FTET FHET

RITEFREATRE: Bank borrowings comprise the

following:

IRITER Bank loans 160,000 190,000 160,000 160,000
RITEX Bank overdrafts 135,627 111,326 - 60
ERREREOER Trust receipts and import loans 133,735 106,330 - -
RBER Mortgage loan 2,463 3,584 - -
| 432,825 | 411240 | 160,000 160,060

PERIEB LMEBARTEER
11,052,000 7T (—EE —4:8,524,000
Ea) ERHAEBUABEBEEFEEAS
8,952,000 T (ZEF—%:7,932,000

Included in the Group's balance above were bank borrowings of HK$11,052,000 (2001:
HK$8,524,000), which were secured by the Group’s land and buildings with a net book
value of HK$8,952,000 (2001: HK$7,932,000).

B 2 Lo RETEER-
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
FEE FLH
2002 2001 2002 2001
> o ZEE—F k- |- - 3 ZEBE-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FRT FRT TET
BBITMISREH S Bank borrowings bear interest
ROTERZERBWT: at prevailing market rates
and are repayable as follows:
BBHNX—FEAR On demand or within one year 323,164 248,023 53,333 60
—ERER Between one to two years 107,162 53,723 106,667 53,333
ERERAN Between two to five years 1,664 107,997 - 106,667
RAFE Over five years 835 1,497 - -
432,825 411,240 160,000 160,060
W —ERNEBREDSIHE Less: Amount due within one year
REBREZEE under current liabilities (323,164) (248,023) (53,333) (60)
—FiRIBreE Amount due after one year 109,661 163,217 106,667 160,000
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27.

BERSHE ()

26, 3 il i 5¢ 26.0THER BORROWINGS
THE GROUP
k.2 3.
2002 2001
a1 o 2 ZEE—F
HK$'000 HK$’000
FHT FET
HthEERATHNER The other borrowings represent block discounting
HERHNT: loans and are payable as follows:
—&Rx Within one year 11,481 6,720
—EZHER Between one to two years 9,375 8,263
WMERFR Between two to five years 8,604 11,471
RAFEE Over five years 595 257
30,055 26,711
W ERNARELIHERS Less: Amount due within one year shown under
BEZRA current liabilities (11,481) (6,720)
—FREEZTE Amount due after one year 18,574 19,991
BRERXR 27.OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES
THE GROUP
k-3 1.1
Present value of
Minimum minimum
lease payments lease payments
HRBEMBRE ARARERBREZREME
2002 2001 2002 2001
by - o 2 —ET—F —ERP_F —ERE-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRT FAET FRT THET
REREEENA TR Amount payable under
T2 &8 finance leases:
—F X Within one year 1,098 1,787 908 1,503
—EWMER Between one to two years 679 226 567 176
MEARFEA Between two to five years 198 120 192 88
1,975 2,133 1,667 1,767
BB ER Less: Finance charges (308) (366) - -
HEAEREBER Present value of lease obligations 1,667 1,767 1,667 1,767
B —EREBEIHERS Less: Amount due within one year
BEZEHE shown under current
liabilities (908) (1,503)
—FRIBAzeH Amount due after one year 759 264




27. @

BHARE-=

HENFEDETEYERIAEER

Bt

=4

AR AEERTVRAR
ABARETES BBRENS

G RERRFAMESEELFTE T
KBTHERE 50348 (CFF— 5
0.08[) “FIFERI M A ME AL
PEEEEREEN - B WG R
HeRETTEARN

28. 7]

AREFEFEITHEES 000,000E T

REAES

21 sER R ES R

RIFE_ERNA=THZER
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27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES - Continued

Lease payments are fixed and no arrangements have been entered into for
contingent rental payments. The Group entered into finance leases to acquire certain
of its plant and machinery and telecommunications networks. The term of the
finance leases ranged from 3 to 5 years and the average effective borrowing rate was
9.34% {2001:9.08%). Interest rate was fixed at the contract date. The leases wereon a
fixed repayment basis and no arrangement had been entered into for contingent
rental payments.

28.CONVERTIBLE EONDS

THE GROUP AND
THE COMPANY
SHERFLEH

2002 2001

-1 Yot 3 ZRE-F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHT FHET

Par value of US$8,000,000 1.5% convertible bonds issued
during the year and balance at 30 June 2002

62,386 -

R-BE-EF/AZ+ZB FZQF2

i
#

REAQREFBIIR-_ZEFTAFH
REBES F24,000,000EL21.5

ErlmpREs ([FRiRER]) BEY
FZF(TEEFREADNTZBE (TR
BipE)) -RRESR 2 TERFAT:

(a)
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MABERSETERESFIIE
BHEHEBEAZEE BUBERES
HOTEME_TE-FRATHA
(TR EF S A —EEE) B
MRERER REERBORE
EReBEiRoEEEREACS
B F B2 125% 2 BI& (A] F
AR (|BEialE)) B8gR
RARBEFSEAZTERAN
JEEELECYE BEBEEA
BB EAAETARTEZ
can BIE ([ZHHIEE]) 25
EHBHRBBEAARESREE
ELzBRD ERTRBERES
BPERFLTEENERTMRG
ZEE-.

AR EH TR EFR L SE B
MABIREERART-ABE
Xk

BERNARBSFCRERNEE AL
BEBARSE THTRRES
RESSAEREEESE-

On 22 May 2002, the Company entered into a subscription agreement (the
“Subscription Agreement”) with an independent third party (the “Bondholder”) for
the subscription of an aggregate principal amount of up to U$$24,000,000 1.5%
convertible bonds due 2005 (the "Convertible Bonds”) issued by the Company.The
principal terms of the Convertible Bonds are as follows:

(@) The outstanding principal amount of the Convertible Bonds may be converted
at the option of the Bondholder in whole or in part into shares of HK$0.1 each in
the Company at any time from date of issue of the Convertible Bonds to 15 May
2002, which is one week prior to the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds, at a
price equal to either 125% of the average of the closing prices per share for the
30 consecutive business days immediately prior to the date of conversion,
subject to adjustment (the “Fixed Conversion Price”) or 94% of the average of
any five closing price per share as selected by the Bondholder during the 30
consecutive business days immediately prior to the date on which notice of
exercise of the bondholder is received by the Company (the “Floating
Conversion Price”), provided that both the Fixed Conversion Price and the
Floating Conversion Price shall not be fess than the par value of the Company’s
shares.

(b) The Convertible Bonds bear interest at the rate of 1.5% per annum and interest
will be payable semi-annually in arrear in June and December in each year.

(¢) Unless previously redeemed, converted or purchased and cancelled, the
Convertible Bonds will be redeemed at 100% of the principal amount at
maturity.



56 Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

MEBmENE (B

28. TTRBE (R ¥ — &
BEXSRERE X252 ETE
HEAAEF LUEREESR2.3635
BILRE S 24,949,905 L F 5 o

REERER AR EETHPE2E
#EI1E8,000,000E T2 WIEREHF R
HH 500,000F 2 BEITEARE
FEIEEIR1.0246B T2 B ELBAR
NE]3,806 314 BREEONBILZR
3o

28.CONVERTIBLE BONDS - Continued
As part of the Subscription Agreement, the Company has also granted to the
Bondholder the right to subscribe for up to 4,949,905 shares in the Company at a
subscription price of HK$2.3635 per share.

During the year, the Company issued part of the Convertible Bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of U5$8,000,000. Subsequent to the balance sheet date,
US$500,000 of the issued Convertible Bonds are converted into 3,806,314 shares of
HK$0.1 each of the Company at a price of HK$1.0246 per share.

29. PERIR 29.DEFERRED TAXATION
THE GROUP
£33

2002 2001

- 3. g S ZBET-F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

EVER Balance at beginning of the year 37 41
KEFEE (o) Movement for the year (note 9) 3 (4)
FEEEE Balance at end of the year 40 37

ERZEBNERARKRRMER Y E
EHERMHRERFTEIHZZEN
SIEZRBRE.

HEHEA BEHEBENEERRETNZ
B FESHBBAMBRHSIINE
XHZEEMSIRZRBEE-

RIBER-_EXNAZ+H mEEER
AESRERBECEEHEEESRE
#%549,804,0008 L (BT —%:
44,661,000/ 7T) 7,996,000 T (=&
B-5:7,52600087T) TEEBEY
BHEENNKR BRI ERRAR
HEREMMRZTELHERELA
REFTHMEBEASZHEABEERE 26
ZBARRERTEHEZFBERKET AR
RREBR HYEEHRBERNERER
EHIEAEFE.

RENSREER XNQBWEERER
BEZERRIERE-.

The movement for the year comprises the taxation effect of the difference between
depreciation allowances claimed for tax purposes and depreciation charged in the
financial statements.

At the balance sheet date, deferred taxation represents the taxation effect of the
excess of depreciation allowances claimed for tax purposes over depreciation
charged in the financial statements.

At 30 June 2002, the Group and the Company had net unprovided tax asset of
HK$49,804,000 (2001: HK$44,661,000) and KK$7,996,000 (2001: HK$7,526,000)
respectively relating primarily to the timing differences of the excess of accounting
depreciation charged in the financial statements over depreciation allowances
claimed for tax purposes and taxation losses of the Company and certain
subsidiaries. The net deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the financial
statements as it is not certain that the benefit will be realised in the foreseeable
future, :

There was no significant unprovided deferred taxation for the Company during the
year or at the balance sheet date.
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30. B % 30.SHARE CAPITAL
Number
of shares Amount
BHEE &%
HK$000
FHT
SREGEIBTZIETRE: Authorised share capitai of HK$0.1 each:
R-EEEF+A-BR Balance at 1 July 2000 and 1 July 2001
—EE-F+A-HZEH% 12,000,000,000 1,200,000
AR IE M Increase in share capital 18,000,000,000 1,800,000
RIBE-_XAZ+HZEHE Balance at 30 June 2002 30,000,000,000 3,000,000
SREHE1BRTZERT Issued and fuily paid share capital of HK$0.1 each:
RBREZF:
RIFZEEFELA-B2ER Balance at 1 July 2000 5,885,403,571 588,540
BARERNG Issue of shares as scrip dividends 47,975,646 4,798
IEZFE-FARES Issue of shares upon exercise of 2001 Warrants
M7 89,640 9
RIBE—FRAZ+ER Balance at 30 June 2001 and 1 July 2001
—EF-FrA-BZ&H% 5,933,468,857 593,347
TR -FRRES Issue of shares upon exercise of 2001 Warrants
mETRM 1,000,950,749 100,095
TEAMBREEMEITRD Issue of shares upon exercise of Bonus Warrants 208,928 21
ALAR IR B W AT IR D Issue of shares upon bonus issue 6,095,846,970 609,585
BIRDUERBAES Issue of shares as consideration to acquire an investment
BREZRE in securities 1,185,600,000 118,560
BITRGUREZSZE—F§ Issue of shares as 2001 final scrip dividends
RERR S 13,124,811 1,312
BRin& bt Consolidation of shares (13,660,032,192) -
B BAR 7 Capital reduction - (1,366,003)
BABRGURB 2T _4F
FHIRR & [ssue of shares as 2002 interim scrip dividends 616,761 61
R-SSE-FAA=+Bz#&%% Balance at 30 June 2002 569,784,884 56,978

Champion Tachnology Holdings LimitedAnnual Report 2002
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30. & - &
RAEE KRR ZBAE L TES:

(a)

(d)

BEWRZ_ZEE—E+_AHH
BRZEBRBEE FLEE
$51£:818,000,000,000 R S8 E
BoETzBRB BEQEZET
A&7 E31,200,000,0008 TTENE
3,000,000,0005 7¢ ;

REEER BRBREREEA
TEARANZZZEZE—FR]K
BB (TERFe0E [RIEER]—
) BARESRNAFR21E
TEREROI1055E L 2 BRET
162,378,113/% % 838,572,636 A% &
BEBoIETZRG:

REERER BRERERESFEA
TERIRARZAMAREE (TR
REERRER. — &) &2
RIESBIAFRNIBETLEER
2,958t BREIT208,813 K
NsEEREEo BTG

BERZEE-—F+ARtEREE
ZERBIAER KARHLERERE
ERNERE-RRAOTES —RRK
M EEETRIBZARIEE
(THIRRREE ) BB —F 4=
A-+hB 4360958469700 %
BEEINETZABRE BT PR
NERRE:

EBEEALRIEBIE=ZE
Pinkerton Developments Limited
(TPinkerton]) R=_FZT —%F
+T—BZthBEZzHE (%
BiEl) A RREMAPinkerton
YBECumbrian Range Limited
([Cumbrian]) 1908 B 77817 -
ECumbrian R B EIZ BT
B9y 2 - W B Cumbrian
19% #2527 481 E 5118,560,000
TC JhLAZR 2 Bl 377 FPinkerton 2
592,800,000 BREEN -BER
ISR S E 4T P Pinkerton Z %
8B B 83592,800,0000 M E
1,185,600,000 R FHRE E0.1E 7T
ZARARG

30.SHARE CAPITAL - Continued
During the year, the following changes in the share capital of the Company took
place:

(a)

(d)

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 5 December 2001, the authorised
share capital of the Company was increased from HK$1,200,000,000 to
HK$3,000,000,000 by the creation of 18,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.1 each;

During the year, 162,378,113 shares and 838,572,636 shares of HK$0.1 each
were issued at HK$0.211 and HK$0.1055 per share respectively as a result of the
exercise of the 2001 Warrants (as defined under the section headed “Warrants”
on page 60) of the Company by the warrant holders;

During the year, 208,813 shares and 115 shares of HK$0.1 each were issued at
HK$0.118 and HK$2.95 per share respectively as a result of the exercise of the
Bonus Warrants (as defined under the section headed "Warrants” on page 60) of
the Company by the warrant holders;

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 7 December 2001, the Company
approved a bonus issue of the Company’s shares on the basis of one share for
every share then held by the shareholders (the “Bonus Issue”). On 19 December
2001, a total of 6,095,846,970 bonus shares of HK$0.1 each were issued to
shareholders of the Company;

Pursuant to an agreement (the “Agreement”) dated 29 November 2001 entered
into between the Company and Pinkerton Developments Limited (“Pinkerton”),
an independent third party, the Company acquired from Pinkerton 190 issued
shares in Cumbrian Range Limited (“Cumbrian”), representing a 19% interest in
the issued share capital of Cumbrian at the date of acquisition. The total
consideration for the acquisition of the 19% interest in Cumbrian was
HK$118,560,000, which was satisfied by the Company’s issue of 592,800,000
shares to Pinkerton. As a result of the Bonus Issue, the number of shares issued
to Pinkerton was adjusted from 592,800,000 shares to 1,185,600,000 shares of
HK$0.1 each in the Company;



30. & &

(f)

RIEZE-F—F RBRREER
BRZEE—SF+-/=-+@EA2
2 AR B E B AR A R R D
URE_SZ-—FERBREE-
ARTBESRONVETLZERE
313,124,811 ERAEEAET
2R8I

RIEFZFRA MBREEER
ERZEE-FRATREAQNHKS
CARR R S5t BT B A 2 BRI AR
BH-BZR-FETREHRIE =2
ACEEB.ISB T BRES
616761 REREEIETZR
R
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BZERAER AaREZ
ZEARMERZRRE @JZZDT

(i) #WBERDFEHRER®EEO
BLZERITRRBETLER
BREHE—BREREE250%
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FRAEZHERAHRGZ
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(i) BIBRREE ZARFREE
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(BREHRBRAREE 2 AE
TERG) ERAREERE
BovEILZ -
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30.SHARE CAPITAL - Continued
(f) InJanuary 2002, 13,124,811 shares of HK$0.1 each were issued at a price of
HKS0.1 per share upon election by shareholders to receive shares in the
Company in lieu of the 2001 final dividend pursuant to the scrip dividend
scheme as announced on 24 December 2001,

In June 2002, 616,761 shares of HK$0.1 each were issued at a price of HK$1.75
per share upon election by shareholders to receive shares in the Company in
lieu of the 2002 interim dividend pursuant to the scrip dividend scheme as
announced on 15 May 2002; and

{(g) Pursuant to a special resolution passed on 27 March 2002, the following
changes in the share capital of the Company took place effective from 4 May
2002:

(i) every 25 issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each of the
Company were consolidated in one ordinary share of HK$2.50 each (the
“Consolidated Share”).

(i) the nominal amount of each Consolidated Share of the Company in issue
was then reduced to HK$0.1 by cancelling the paid up capital to the extent
of HK$2.40 on each of the Consolidated Shares (the “Capital Reduction”).

(iiiy the nominal amount of each of the authorised but unissued shares of
HK$2.50 each of the Company following the Capital Reduction, include
unissued shares arising from the Capital Reduction, be sub-divided into 25
shares of HK$0.1 each.

All shares issued rank pari passu with the then existing shares in issue in all respects.

Champion Technology Holdings LimitedAnnuaf Report 2002
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MEEENE (8|

30. & -

B
R-ZFEETE+-F-+=ZB &
REIAHMERERSRTLTIRRE
oA -A£1,177,080,714100HF
#)248,364,0308 TIRBE Y B EE
((ZEZ2-FRBRER]) BET-80
AREREFEAYEVSREEER
0211 (AI FHR%E) LBRERE-FL
RERE RBEEDABRESR0.1055
AT RERBREEER_EE—F+
A+ B%Me

BRER-ZEE-F+-AXBPBBZE
BREBR AQTCHEAEREER
FIRIRAR R (TALFIRAREE) BE
EESREREEIGHET 2D ER
— A FARE R E L AL FIE BT
& $£2,843,173,3151D R REZ B M
ERREBZE4 335,494,451 AR T
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(AT FHZ) RERG R EUgy& F
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MAREFERN K1524,9848 TREEY
AR EETE-

30.SHARE CAPITAL - Continued

Warrants

On 23 November 2000, the Company announced a proposed bonus issue of warrants
to its shareholders. A total of 1,177,080,714 units of warrants (“2001 Warrants”) with
subscription rights of approximately HK$248,364,030 were issued. Each warrant
entitled the holder thereof to subscribe in cash at an initial subscription price of
HK$0.211 per share, subject to adjustments. Following the Bonus issue, the
subscription price was adjusted to HK$0.1055 per share. The warrants expired on 22
December 2001.

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 6 December 2001, the Company
approved a bonus issue of warrants ("Bonus Warrants”) to its shareholders on the
basis of one unit of Bonus Warrant for every 5 shares of HK$0.10 each of the
Company. A total of 2,843,173,315 units of warrants, conferring rights to subscribe
up to HK$335,494,451 in aggregate for the Company's shares were therefore issued.
Each warrant entitles the holder thereof to subscribe in cash at an initial subscription
price of HK$0.118 per share, subject to adjustments. Following the share
consolidation as set out in (g) above, the subscription price was adjusted to HK$2.95.
The warrants will expire on 6 January 2003.

During the year, Bonus Warrants carrying subscription rights of HK$24,984 were
exercised.
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30.B8F - 30.SHARE CAPITAL - Continued
fRAR L B Share Option Scheme
REARBBERET SIS L BRES Details of the options granted under the Company’s share option scheme are as
[EE N follows:
Options shares (adjusted as a appropriate)
BRAFSRZBH (TEBERWATHERE)
Outstanding Adjustment  Adjustment on Lapsed OQutstanding
Exercise at on bonus consolidation during at
Date of grant Exercise period price 1.7.2001 issue# of shares* the year 30.6.2002
BHEN TR iR RIS-% ATHHZERS aftBpz AR REREH it 1 Jk-3
tA-8 KR=t+8
HETE HETE
HK$
#T
304.1999 30.4.1999 to 29.4.2002 0.08664# 34,500,000 34,500,000 - (69,000,000} -
~AANEBRAZ+E —AAAERAI+EE
CEEIFERACAR
8.2.2000 8.2.2000 to 7.2.2003 5.824* 65,000,000 65,000,000 (124,800,000} - 5,200,000
ZEFFEE_ANR ZEFRE-ANRE
B=FZRLA
99,500,000 99,500,000 {124,800,000) (69,000,000) 5,200,000
¥ BRERSRZROEE RIBRZTE #  Thenumber of share options and the corresponding exercise prices have been adjusted as a
BEAEXRHRERFERGIEE 17 result of bonus issue of the Company’s shares on the basis of one share for every share then
ROGHE-—RBBzHE RFF held by the shareholders of the Company on 19 December 2001,
—F+ZA+ABEREBIESE S BT
B mIELAE-
* BRIEFPRZREEE BIARZITE *  The number of share options and the corresponding exercise prices have been adjusted as a
BEHEEEREREH BT resuft of consolidation of 25 shares of Champion of HKS0.1 each into 1 share of HKS2.50 each
BEHR BRFREEL 0BT ZIG and thereafter reduction of the nominal value of each of issued and unissued shares of
YRAK _FE_FRAMNBETES Champion from HKS2.50 each to HKS0.1 each on 4 May 2002.

BERITRABRITREZEEHER
250 TEIREGRONBTH LT
o
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31. kK 31.RESERVES
Capital
Share Dividend  redemption General Capital Goodwill Merger  Translation Accumulated
prermium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
BhER BRER  WERDER 11 ] REER BRER SHER BRER RhEy L1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR Fan Fin FAn FRn En AR Far FER TR
THE GROUP

At 1 July 2000

- as originally stated 902693 - 50 - - (396,184 ) 8,358 2439 1,225,503 1,742,859

- prior period adjustment in
respect of derecognition of
proposed finat d'vidend

declared by the Company
for the year ended 30 June 2000 - 8828 - - - - - - - 8,628
- as restated 902,693 8828 50 - - (396,184 8358 2,439 1,225,503 1,751,687

Premium arising from issue of shares

- on exercise of warrants 10 - - - - - - - - 10

- on distribution of scrip dividends 3,800 - - - - - - - - 3,800
Exchange difference arising on

transtation of operations outside

Hong Kong - - - - - - - (141) - (141}
Capitalisation for a bonus issue of

shares of a subsidiary - - - - 4,198 - - - {42,198) -
Net profit for the year - - - - - - - - 252579 252578
Dividend for the year

- interim - 738 - - - - - - (7386 -

- Final - 8,900 - - - - - - {8900) -
Dividend paid - (7616 ) - - - - - - - {7616)
Tssue of shares as scrip dividends - 8598 ) - - - - - - - 18,598 )

At 30 June 2001 and ¥ July 2001

906,503 8900 50 - 42,198 (396,184 8,358 2,298 1419598 1991721
Reserve arising from Capital
Reduction {note 30(g)) - - - 1,366,003 - - - - - 1,366,003
Premium arising from issue of shares
- on exercise of warrants 22,640 - - - - - - - - 22,640
- on distribution of scrip dividends 1019 - - - - - - - - 1019
Exchange difference arising on
translation of operations
olitside Hong Kong - - - - - - - 3 - 1723
Capitaisation for Banus Issue {609,585} - - - - - - - - (609,585 )
Capitalisation for a bonus issue of
ZikAE shares of a subsidiary - - - - 63297 - - - 163,297) -
AE AL Net profit for the year - - - - - - - - 170,570 170570
EERD Dividend for the year
= - underprovision in prior year - 24l - - - - - - {241) -
33 - interim - 5,893 - - - - - - {3893} -
£ - Final - 14,245 - - - - - - (14245} -
Dividend paid - (15,642) - - - - - - - (15,642 )
Issue of shares as scrip dividends - (2392) - - - - - - - {2392}
At 30 June 2002 320517 14,245 50 1,366,003 105,495 (396,184) 8,358 4,021 1503492 2,926,057
Attributable to:
The Company and its subsidiaries 320,577 14,245 50 1,366,003 105,495 (396,184 } 8,358 4021 1503402 2926087
An associate - - - - - - - - - -

320,577 14,245 50 1,366,003 105495 (396,184 8,358 40 1503492 2926057
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FEEZAHBEBER-ANZFEST
EOSEAMELEZHE-

BEREQE—RHEM
BRrlZ B EMBFERAZ 0¥
TEMBARZIBRMEEY 28

21.RESERVES - Continued

The Group's merger reserve represents the reserve arising from the group
reorganisation in 1992.

The Group's capital reserve represents the amount arising from a bonus issue of
shares of a subsidiary of the Company by way of capitalising the subsidiary’s
accumulated profits,

Capital
Share Dividend General  redemption Special Accumulated
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
Bitam BEGRE -RER FIAEER REEE afran 314
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FRR Fan FRT FRR FET FET FAT
3N THE COMPANY
RI% At 1 July 2000
- as ordinary stated 902,693 - - 50 107,947 111,000 1,121,690
2l - prior period adjustment in respect of
AAZTALER derecognition of proposed final dividend
RERBRAER declared by the Company for the year
[ ] ended 30 june 2000 - 8328 - - - - 3,828
~ as restated 902,693 8828 - 50 107,947 111,000 1,130,518
Premium erising from issue of shares
- on exercise of warrants 10 - - - - - 10
~ on distribution of scrip dividends 3,800 - - - - - 3,800
NetToss for the year - - - - - (1,879) {1,879)
Dividend for the year
- Interim - 7386 - - - (7,386) -
- Final - 8,900 - - - (8,900} -
Dividend paid - (7,616} - - - - (7616)
Issue of shares as scrip dividends - (8,598) - - - - (8,598)
=+19 At 30 June 2001 and 1 July 2001
A-f 906,503 8,900 - 50 107,947 92,835 1,116,235
HERAHEE 785 {HE300) Reserve arising from Capital Reduction {note 30{g)) - - 1,366,003 - - - 1,366,003
BTHBERBAERAELZER  Premium arising from issue of shares
E - on exercise of warrants 22,640 - - - - - 22640
- on distribution of scrip dividends 1,019 - - - - - 1019
Capitalisation for Bonus Issue (609,585 ) - - - - - (609,585 )
Net loss for the year - - - - - {3,545} {3,545)
Dividend for the year
- Underprovision in prior years - 241 - - - [241) -
- Interim - 8,893 - - - {8,893) -
- final - 14,245 - - - (14,245) -
Dividend paid - (15,642) - - - - {15,642)
Issue of shares as script dividends - {2,392) - - - - (2,392)
R-B2-EXAZ+A At 30 June 2002 320,577 14,245 1,366,003 50 107,947 65911 1,874,733

EREZENBEEREADEYE
Champion (Cook islands) Limited 2 KTT
(Cook Islands) Limited Z IR 38 B 52 5F
ARIZETEEEMFELEF L ERE
MBGTZELARTEBERERZE

%o
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The Company's special reserve represents the difference between the book values of
the underlying net assets of Champion (Cook Islands) Limited and KTT (Cook Islands)
Limited at the date on which the shares of these companies were acquired by the
Company, and the nominal amount of the Company’s shares issued for the
acquisition.
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HRREWE (&

2. MNAHNERRERAZH 32.RECONCILIATION OF PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION TO NET
SRR E CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
2002 2001
-1+ Jonk- 3 —EE-F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FET
BR TR AT T Profit before taxation 198,260 296,272
ME - BWEREBTE Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 85,971 129,277
HEBMIERE 7Y Amortisation of investments in telecommunications
projects 103,411 58,345
BHRZRARZ Amortisation of systems and networks 39,520 1,290
BHETHERAZRE Amortisation of investments in e-commerce projects 170,778 112,570
REME Deposits written off 9 -
REFNEFNBAZRBEERE Impairment loss recognised for investments in securities 3,887 -
HitBURRT - 8BS Allowance for other receivables 1,051 -
HENE REREGZEE Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 185 399
BBHREEMIIzRE Allowance for deposits paid in connection with
BEAHEE ZERMER telecommunications projects, interest in
EFRBENEELZEE telecommunications projects written off, and systems
and networks written off 2,379 77
ROTREMEEZFE Interest on bank and other borrowings 28,277 37,189
BEHECHBER Finance charges on finance leases 324 423
AERREFZBITERSR Issue costs of convertible bonds 2,470 -
ERTHEAR Loan arrangement fee - 3,200
FEBA Interest income (13,108) (19,946)
FERHEFHEER BB 2 WE Gain on disposal of interest in e-commerce projects (26,213) (4,669)
BHEEZBERA Dividend income from investments in securities (1,346) (1,160)
EEEHUHLCIBCEAHBER Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on inter-company :
ZRE balances 1,192 2,332
&R L (BN Decrease (increase) in inventories 10,844 (650)
FERESREMBEZ ()L (Increase) decrease in trade and other receivables (74,847) 49,832
BNESREMBESRDS Decrease in trade and other payables (41,760) {260,405)
REBELNCED) Increase (decrease) in warranty provision 73 {1,680)
BEREZEENCED) Increase (decrease) in customers’ deposits 20,174 (12,177}
BERBHAE2RSFHE Net cash inflow from operating activities 511,531 390,519




I FRREEDSF 33.ANALYSIS OF CHANGES OF FINANCING DURING THE
YEAR
Share Trust Obligations
capital receipts under
including and import Mortgage Other finance Convertible
premium loans Bank loans loan borrowings lease bonds
BRE 14244 -] BT BHAR HeHR ROEARR TRBAS
(BREAR) RECHER
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TEL FET FET TiET TERT FiERT
At 1 July 2000 1,491,233 73,697 230,000 4173 30,100 3,523 -
Currency realignment ~ - - (266) (2,064) (242) -
Proceeds from issue of shares on exercise of
warrants 19 - ' - - - - -
{a‘ﬁfm Rk EES Issue of shares as scrip dividends 8,598 - - - - - -
AEEHARRGFE Net cash inflow during the year - 32,633 - - - - -
HEEZER New loans raised - - - - 19,765 - -
FERER Repayments during the year - - (40,000) (323) {21,090) (1,514) -
RIBR-EAAZHER At30June 2001 and 1 July 2001
ZEF-£+f-3 1,499,850 106,330 190,000 3,584 26,711 1,767 -
ERBE Currency realignment - - - 300 2,237 147 -
EEAZHBEBIRY  Issue of shares for the acquisition of an
investment in securities 118,560 - - - - - -
HRERHEEZEGE Reserve arising from Capital Reduction (1,366,003) - - - - - -
GEEREATARG Proceeds from issue of shares on exercise
BB of warrants 122,756 - - - - - -
EGDE A ﬁﬂﬁfr-ﬂﬂ?fﬁé Cash receipt from issue of convertible bonds - - - - - 59,916
&1 : Issue costs of convertible bonds - - - - - - 2,470
FR {a‘ﬁuﬁ fssue of shares as scrip dividends 2,392 - - - - - -
REFHERSEE Net cash inflow during the year - 27,405 - - - - -
HGREZER New loans raised - - - -~ 9,922 - -
THRREZENLE Other movement not invalving cash
(BE34b) (note 34b) - - - - - 2,168 -
REEER Repayments during the year - - {30,000) (421) (8,815) (2,415} -
RIFE-EXA=+8 At 30 June 2002 377,555 133,735 160,000 3,463 30,055 1,667 62,386

JM.EEHFREXH

(a) RAEERN T2 EURE
118,560,000/ LW EE Cumbrian®
BIIRKIon R BHARED
IADTRERONVETZERE
731,185,600,0001 B EEO &
TR E R

REEZR NEERETHVITD

BENEBENE2,168,000ETTZ
BESTUBABERE
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(a)

34.MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTICNS

During the year, the Company acquired a 19% interest in the issued share
capital of Cumbrian at a consideration of HK$118,560,000 which was satisfied by
the issue of 1,185,600,000 shares of HK$0.1 each in the Company at HK$0.1 per

share.

During the year, the Group entered into finance lease arrangements in respect
of assets with a total capital value of approximately HK$2,168,000 at the

inception of the leases.
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PHERERE (E)

5. RERARSVBEERIH

35.ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS

2002 2001

—ez=f —wT-=

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FTER

BFRETEETERERS Deposits, bank balances and cash 626,001 565,752
HRITES Bank overdrafts (135,627) (111,326)
490,374 454,426

36. WANM 36.CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
THE COMPANY
ERF

2002 2001

—BE=fF TRB-F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TR TERL

ARBARNBREZEERE Guarantees given to banks in respect of credit facilities

B ERTTIEE 2 B R granted to subsidiaries 175,800 | 175,800

FTRERZEESHEEAERIAR

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at the balance sheet

& date.
37. REEHR 37.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
THE GROUP
ERE
2002 2001
25 —EE-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FAET
BECEARER: Capital expenditure in respect of investments:
ERTEHEREVHBESTEE  Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements - 23,250
EFREERITEN Authorised but not contracted for - -
- 23,250
NE BERREBZERNHER: Capital expenditure in respect of property, plant
and equipment:
CHAHEREVHRMRETAE  Contracted for but not provided in the financial statements 44,140 816
EREEERITEH Authorised but not contracted for 113,822 26,178
157,962 26,994
157,962 50,244

FRRREEOHBETEMETAE.

The Company did not have any capital commitments at the balance sheet date.
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NzRERENRBZIHABROT:

38.0PERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Group as leasee

67

At the balance sheet date, the Group had future minimum lease payments payable
under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises and machinery

and equipment which fall due as follows:

THE GROUP
EHE
2002 2001
—Be—F ZEFE-F
Machinery Machinery
Land and and Land and and
buildings equipment buildings equipment
T REF BRRWE THREE BRREE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FERT TET FER
BEBERER: Operating leases which expire:
—FA Within one year 2,735 2,980 3,823 3,576
RELER In the second to fifth years
(BEEREREEN) inclusive 3,104 5,796 3,462 4,112
5,839 8,776 7,285 7,688

BHpEBrz2FIHREFRA—ZNE
MEENE-ENEZ LHEEE-

REER XRANZREHEARPE
FAHHEEREERENZRERE
REZ SRR T:

Leases are negotiated for an average term of one to four years and rentals are fixed

for an average term of one to four years.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had future minimum lease payments
payable under non-cancellable operating leases in respect of rented premises which

fall due as follows:

THE COMPANY

2%
2002 2001
-3 - 3 —EE--F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
REHEER- Operating leases which expire:
—ER Within one year 552 828
MEAFR(BEEMFEBIEEAN)  Inthe second to fifth years inclusive - 552
552 1,380

Champion Technology Holdings LimitedAnnual Report 2002
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BB EHE (B

3. EWERKIR-5

39.

FRMEDLEA

REER AEERRERBEREA
BRABFIVZEHNZEEER

38.0PERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS - Continued

The Group as lessor

At the balance sheet date, the Group had contracted with tenants in respect of plant
and machinery and telecommunications networks which fall due as follows:

mT
2002 2001
—ge-f —EF—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FERT
BR—ER Within one year 5,439 2,590
MEAFERN (EEMFERIEEA)  Inthe second to fifth years inclusive 11,583 6,475
RREE After five years 17,022 9,065
BRALTES 39.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

FREARFREHBAT (BRTAE
BESTREZZEREEGRATIRE
MBAR([EEEE]) ARKA
B78%EBEZHEEBREMBAR
([BEEFBET]) ) BREFEE

EEBEERBEET RS

REAREETZERME

WREBZARLERERE
REBREZBR
HETMSBY

BAEEE RSN

WEEAEBERBRS
ZRBE

DE

B4

Kantone Group and the DIGITALHK Group:

Nature of transactions with the Kantone Group

Fees received for the provision of office premises and
facilities, and management services

Sales of telecommunications equipment

Purchases of pagers and equipment

Service fees received for the provision of
internet related services

2002
—BE_F
HK$'000

FHT

1,200
214
128

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries other than Kantone Holdings
Limited, a 57% owned subsidiary of the Company, and its subsidiaries (the “Kantone
Group”), and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM, a 78% owned subsidiary of the Company,
and its subsidiaries (the “DIGITALHK Group”) had the following transactions with the

1,200

1,369




39.BBAXIRH -4

HEXSFHRAREURTYH

69

39.RELATED PARTY TRANSACTICNS - Continued

These transactions were carried out after negotiation between the Group and

Loe N BA TS

BET-BRERRANMEZ BEE
T EREARLCERERERERR
BBz BATBER—ANRET
CAZTHTZZEEBEIAEX
H-ERERERBRBMURT RS
REARFHEBALITIRSAEHAZE

MR-

RBEEEFRRBMETZXAER

ENELE- FERFEWE

ERITHE

Registration fee, annual fee and technical fee paid

respective related companies.The purchases were determined on a cost plus basis.
The fees received for the provisions of office premises and facilities, and
management services were in accordance with the management agreement dated
20 December 1996.The service fees received for the provision of internet related
services were charged on terms similar to those applicable to transactions with

unrelated parties.

Nature of transactions with the DIGITALHK Group

Administration fees received

2002 2001
—ge_F —EF-F
HK$’000 HK$'000

TET FET

6,687 3,921
3,000 3,000

EARBENSEAQATNEELRBILE
ZTEMET M8 A{THE250,000%
TARER AT HETEEILCEE

FEE Y

40. BB LT

The service fees paid were charged with reference to comparable market prices as
determined by the directors of the Company while the administration fees were
charged at a monthly fee of HK$250,000 pursuant to a management agreement
entered into between the Company and DIGITALHONGKONG.COM.

40.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

RZIEFZERAZTHE ARREE

BHBLRZHFENT:

Name of company

LEEH

100BESTSHOP.COM
Limited

Aerostar Services
Limited

Allum Resources Limited

Champion China
Telecommunications
Limited*

BEGBBEEROA"

Champion Technology Holdings LimitedAnnual Report 2002

Place of
incorporation/
operations

BRI BRI

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands
HERARES

British Virgin Islands/
Macau and People’s
Republic of China
("PRC")

RREERESS
BPRREAR
HAE(TRED

British Virgin Islands/
Macau and PRC

ERGERES/
ERRTE

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2002 are as follows:

Nominal value
of issued
share capital

ERTRIEE
Ordinary - HKS2
BBk -2%T
Ordinary - US$1
BBl 1%

Ordinary - US$1
TRk - 18T

Ordinary - US$1
TER-1ER

Attributable

equity interest

to the Group
EEEBEZRIEE

100%

100%

57%

100%

Principal activities

IEEH

Provision of services and
software licensing
RERBEEEETE

Provision of treasury services
REMBRS

Sales of general system
products
HE-REZLER

Investment in
telecommunications
networks

REEMRE
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40. EEEAT -5

Name of company

AT ER

Champion (Cook Islands)
Limited*

Champion Consortium
Limited

Champion Fax Machine
Investments Limited

Champion International
Investments Limited

Champion Luck
International Limited
BERBEERATE

Champion Million
Industries Limited
HBEXERLA

Champion Pacific
Investment Limited
BRRESRAR

Champion Technology
Limited
REMHEERLT

Champion
Telecommunications
(B.V.l) Limited

Champion Telephone
Limited
EEREFRAT

40.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - Continued

Place of
incorporation/
operations

BRAY EEHE

Cook islands
ERES

British Virgin Islands/
PRC
REEBRES/TE

British Virgin Islands/
PRC
HEABRES +

British Virgin Islands/
PRC
REHBRESE /T

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
%

Hong Kong
i

Hong Kong
i

British Virgin islands
HBEEANHE

Hong Kong

Nominal value
of issued
share capital

ERTREEE

Ordinary - HK$1
TER-1ET

Ordinary - US$1
E@R-1ET

Ordinary - US$1
Ec S e

Ordinary - U$$50,000
LB -50,000E T

Ordinary - HK$2
LAk -28BT

Ordinary ~ HKS2
TEE -8R

Ordinary - HK$2
E@ER-2ET

Ordinary - HK$1,000
Deferred - HK$1,000,000
LE - 1,000
EHEER - 1,000,000 T

Ordinary - US$100
Deferred - US5$1,000
LAWK -100ET
BIERR - 1,0005 7T

Ordinary - HK$2
L@k - 2T

Attributable

equity interest

to the Group
FEMBHZREIRE

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

TERE

Investment holding
REER

Strategic investment
REMRE

Investment holding
REZE

Investment in
telecommunications
netwarks

HEEREE

Property investment
MERE

Property investment
MERE

Property investment
MER

Sales of general systems
products and provision
of services and software

- licensing

HE-REARERREHRE

RE 5T

Investment in
telecommunications
networks and e-commerce
projects

BEABHBEEETHEER

Investment in
telecommunications
networks

REEHMBE



40. TEMBLT -4

Place of
incorporation/
Name of company operations
LFRE HERsY ERR
Champnet Limited Hong Kong
HEEEERAR FiE
Chief Champion Limited Hong Kong
T2RERAF £
Chinese Paging Company ~ Hong Kong
Limited B
PXENERRT
Chinese Science & Hong Kong
Technology Limited EE
BYREFERLF
Cyber Solutions Inc. Samoa
EEGHEE

DIGITALHONGKONG.
COMINC.

British Virgin Islands
HBSRRES

DIGITALHONGKONG. COM*  Cayman Islands

BEFE REHE

Digital Commerce Hong Kong
Limited s

Digital Hong Kong Hong Kong
Limited EE

BETEERERLE

Champicn Technology Holdings LimitedAnnual Report 2002

Nominal vaiue
of issued
share capital

ERTRFEE

Ordinary - HK$2
L@k - 28T

Ordinary - HK$1,000
Deferred -HK$ 10,000
LS -1,00087T
RIER - 10,000 T

Ordinary - HK$1,000
Deferred - HK$2,000,000
EER - 1,008 T
EERE - 2,000,0008 7T

Ordinary - HK$2
E@R - 28T

Ordinary - US$1
BRER-1ET

Ordinary - US$1
ERER - 15T

Ordinary - HK$15,000,000
LI -15,000,0008 T

Ordinary - HK$2
EER -2

Ordinary ~ HK$2
TER-2BT

40.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - Continued

Attributabie

equity interest

to the Group
FREOBGCREES

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

78%

78%

78%

78%

71

Principal activities

FERH

Provision of services and
software licensing
RERBRTHETE

Property investment
NERE

Sales of general system
products and provision
of services and software
licensing
HE-BRAGERRRHERS
REGHE

Provision of services and
software licensing

RERBREGHTE

Provision of services and
software licensing
REBBREHETE

Provision an e-Commerce
platform for payment
process for global business

AERLERRBETHE
MEiErTe

Investment holding

Devefopment of e-Commerce
platform and evaluation
of e-Commerce
opportunities
REEFHETLR
SHEYEEER

Provision of an e-Commerce
platform for payment
process for retail customers
and e-malls based in
Hong Kong

AERBZEEEFREF
BERUETHETS



MEEmEhE (8

40. T ERMAT -7

Name of company
LEER

ESP International
Group Limited
ESPEBESEEERAH

Happy Union
Development Limited
BURBEER QA

Harilela Kantone
Telecommunications
Limited

High Win Limited

Hong Kong IT
Alliance Limited
EREAFRHEERLD

Hydro-Cable Limited

Internet Vehicles Limited
ERESEERLDE

Kannet Limited
ERBRBRERRA

Kantel Limited
BREHEERRLE

Kantone Asia Limited

Kantone Holdings
Limited*

EREEER LA

Kantone Paging

Company Limited
BEPEFTERLE

72 Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

40.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - Continued

Place of
incorporation/
operations
SRR

Hong Kong
FE

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
T

British Virgin Islands
REBRBREE

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands
HRABRES

Hong Kong
BE

Hong Kong
R

Hong Kong
Bl

British Virgin Islands/
PRC and Macau
REEBRES/
T+ B R

Cayman islands
HEHE

Hong Kong
EE

Nominal value
of issued
share capital
ERTREEE

Ordinary - HKS2
THER-2ET

Ordinary - HK$2
TEk-23T

Ordinary - HK$10,000
B - 10,0008 7T

Ordinary - US$1
EBR-1ERT

Ordinary - HK$2
TEM-2ET

Ordinary -~ US$1
BB -1ER

Ordinary - HK$2
@Rk -287

Ordinary - HK$2
ERR - 287

Ordinary - HKS$2
TR - 28T

Ordinary - US$1
EER-1ET

Ordinary - HK$222,096,175
EEAE - 222,096,175/5 7T

Ordinary - HK$1,000
Deferred -~ HK$2,000,000
L@ -1,00087T
IEFEHR - 2,000,0005 7T

Attributable
equity interest

to the Group
FEMEGEZRERE

100%

100%

55%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

57%

57%

100%

Principal activities

EERE

Advertising and recruitment
agency
BERARRELT

Property investment

investment in
telecommunications
networks

REEMBLE

Investment holding
REER

Provision of services and
software licensing

RERB BT RFE

Investment holding

BEER

Provision of services and
software licensing
BERBRETETE

Provision of services and
software licensing
BEBBREITETE

Investment in
telecommunications
networks

REERES

Trading and distribution of
telecommunications
equipment and general
systems products

EERSHEEASRIR
—REHESR

Investment holding
RERR

Pravision of services and
software licensing
RERKERETRTE



40. EEZMBLRTB - &

Name of company

YNSE-1]

Kantone (UK) Limited

Kontone Development
Limited

EREBERLE

Kontone International
Limited

EREBRERLE

KTT (Cook Islands)
Limited*

Linkit Industries Limited

Lucky Success
Development Limited

EBRERERLR

Lucky Tone Investments
Limited

FRREAFARAA

M.C. Holdings Limited

Multitone Electronics
PLC

Multitone Electronics
Sdn. Bhd.

Multiton Elektronik GmbH

Multiton Eiektronik
GmbH

40.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - Continued

Place of
incorporation/
operations

HEREY BEHR
United Kingdom
a5

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
¥

Cook Islands
ERHEE

British Virgin Islands
ZRARRRS

Hong Kong

Hong Kong
it

Cayman Islands
HEHS

United Kingdom
BER

Malaysia
BREDR

Germany

=35

Austria
B R

Champion Technolfogy Holdings LimitedAnnual Report 2002

Nominai value
of issued
share capital
ERTRIEE

Ordinary - £5,500,000
LiBAR - 5,500,0005 &

Ordinary - HK$2
LTEl - 2%

Ordinary - HK$2
Z@ER - 28T

Ordinary - HK$10,000
ZBI% - 10,0008

Ordinary - US$1
TER-1ED

Ordinary - HKS$2

EBE-2ET

Ordinary - HKS$2
Liafg-28n

Ordinary - £5,500,002
LB ~5,500,0028 8

Ordinary - £3,830,107
L@k - 3,830,107 K%

Ordinary - MR285,000
ZHER - 2850005 RFELT

Ordinary ~ DM2,000,000
LA - 2,000,005 %

Ordinary - ATS500,000
EiBER - 500,000%S

Attributable

equity interest

to the Group
SEEBECRSER
57%

57%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

57%

57%

57%

57%

57%

73

Principal activities

TERER

fnvestment holding
RERR

Provision of administrative
services

BRITHRSE

Investment holding
RE®Z

investment holding
RERR

Investment holding
RAER

Property investment
NERE

Property investment

MERRA

investment holding
HEER

investment holding, design
and manufacture of paging
and telecommunications
system and equipment

REFR SR REEETR
ERERREN

Manufacture of paging
equipment
EEETEN

Manufacture of paging
equipment

EEFTEN

Distribution of paging
equipment
DHETEN
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40. EEMMLAT -2

Name of company
LFER

Multitone Rentals Limited

New Telecomm Company
Limited
HRERFREAE

Parsons Industrial
Corporation

PC2A.COM Limited

QQKK.COM Limited

Regionport Limited

Very Happy [nternational
Limited
REBEERDLF

Y28.COM iInc.

¥28.COM Limited
BREBERDA

Y28.Innovations
{formerly known as
Y28.COM)*
{(B1iBY28.COM) *

Zonal Care Incorporated

Y HAELNEEREEE

40.PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - Continued

Place of
incorporation/
operations

B BB

United Kingdom
35

Hong Kong

British Virgin Istands/
Macau
ERSEBREHE RN

Hong Kong
&

Hong Kong

British Virgin islands/
Macau
HEAERES AN

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands
RERANES

Hong Kong
EE

Cayman Islands
HEeFs

British Virgin Islands/
Macau
AREBRES/ RN

*

Nominal value
of issued
share capital

ERTRSEE

Ordinary - £100
HiHI - 100K

Ordinary - HK$6,000,000
I EAL - 6,000,000 70

Ordinary - US$1
TEM 1%

Ordinary - HKS2
T@ER - 28T

Ordinary - HK$2
EEB-2ET

Ordinary - USS$1
Rk -1E 7

Ordinary - HKS2
TER-28T

Ordinary - US$1
ERM-1%E7

Ordinary - HKS2
TRKR-2BT

Ordinary - HK50.1
ZER-0.1ER

Ordinary - US$1

TRE-IRT

Directly held by the Company

Attributable

equity interest

to the Group
FEMREHECBREIRS

57%

100%

57%

100%

100%

57%

100%

100%

100%

100%

57%

Principal activities

FERY

Leasing of system products

Provision of services and
software licensing
RERSE REFRTE

Trading and development of
systems products and
provision of services and
software licensing

EERRERFEQRRERSE
RELFHETE

Provision of services and
software licensing
BERE RE G 5E

Provision of services and
software licensing
RERBLRBEETE

Provision of treasury services
REMEES

Property investment
WEER

Provision of services and
software licensing
BRBERETRER

Provision of services and
software ficensing
REREREEETE

Provision of services and
software licensing
RERBREGSHE

Investments in
e-commerce projects
RETTHERAI



40. TEMBLT) - & 40.
EAEESEL FEHBARZEL
B T i E AR

(a) HEEQATRAEFE-—EFBEE
ZHFFEE100,000,000,0008 T
B MESATNNBREESSEMNE
ZEEFEERI R

(b) MOEERE BRQFIZETER
BEBARZBBTEIELE
100,000,000,000% T/ - AR 2 T
ZHGEETREERSHMEY
RIS {7 AT 2 B

ERFAIIZFRBMBRADNEFTER
REARRAEAFEHRFREEN
EEARBIFRESAREAZHER
ACEBRERS BMEEGMBLRZEH
E-rE et ERaR TR,

EHBLER-_FEFANAZTAHRK
FREANESEERERESR.
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PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES - Continued

The deferred shares, which are held by the Group, of each of the above-mentioned
subsidiaries entitled the holders thereof to:

(a) a fixed non-cumulative dividend at the rate of 5% per annum for any financial
year of the company in question in respect of which the net profits of such
company exceed HK$100,000,000,000; and

(b} onawinding-up, a return of the capital paid up on such shares out of the
surplus assets of the company in question after a total sum of
HK$100,000,000,000 has been distributed in such winding up in respect of each
of the ordinary shares of such company.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion of the
directors, principally affected the results of the year or constituted a substantial
portion of the net assets of the Group.To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities subsisting at 30 June 2002 or at any
time during the year.
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E % | RESULTS
Year ended 30 June
HEARAZ+ALERE
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
—ANE —AANE ZEEEF —EE-F bt 1 -
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTRET FEL FET THET FHT
'3 1] TURNOVER 1,276,561 1,393,682 1,457,181 1,510,779 | 1,633,388
REMARRERT PROFIT FROM ORDINARY
ACTIVITIES BEFORE
TAXATION
REEMEEHES Continuing operations
TRIEBEER excluding other
operating items 292,972 303,533 436,035 296,272 205,313
HEf@E1EE Other operating items (88,005) (91,532) (83,307) - (7,053)
204,967 212,001 352,728 296,272 198,260
R TAXATION (140) (1,215) (3,013) (584) (427)
EHINBEEBRZBF PROFIT BEFORE MINORITY
INTERESTS 204,827 210,786 349,715 295,688 197,833
PHENEDR MINORITY INTERESTS (24,627) (25,234) (45,860) (43,109) (27,263)
EEEHEFH NET PROFIT FORTHE YEAR 180,200 185,552 303,855 252,579 170,570
Be DIVIDENDS 8,338 13,868 25,389 16,286 14,245
RERRARK ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
At 30 June
RABE=+H
1998 1999 2000 2001 2002
—ANNE —AANEF —ETEF “ET—F bt 1. k.
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T FET FET FTERT FET
(&%) o (EF) (&) (83)
(restated) (restated) (restated) (restated)
RE20 TOTAL ASSETS 2,285,355 2,707,071 3,420,308 3,444,962 | 3,941,869
ARABRIBBERRS TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
MINOQRITY INTERESTS 667,181 707,079 1,080,081 859,894 958,834
BRERS SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 1,618,174 1,999,992 2,340,227 2,585,068 2,983,035J

BEFEZLEBFERBLEEREN 22
BRESETETBER TREY) WEH—&

ZE2HFTR-

presentation.

Comparative figures for prior years have been restated in accordance with the new and
revised accounting policies adopted by the Group in order to achieve a consistent
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ERHE 77

BEMRRE:

REREEMRE=TFUR ZERFANBERAKBREN —F-27R
EREFRURBRESNE - E-AANE-NAAFEE BT IR
BENEBBERSRERE MAREEZRARRTRAZFMARRLZ
B-RETSERER L.

SR MREEFHE-ERATEZEGR BB REEWE MEA
ERRFHR L2 EREEE SAARSHETEMERE E2ETH
o

ZEERLCRBBELCESBD

BRI RRENNEEBERRIBR-AM ETHTERRIEEEE
RERZHEE TEMBRERTRETHABLEER Bt ER%0
ZHEEZROCEDIBERENETENERZSHERE.

EHEMZERENRERESERE AR ERNMBARAERKCE
BRAR BRNERZFIERELMEARRZBE - Bl REN—NN
PERVAZEEERZ - DREFEEREMRIARALEAS
PIBUM B U BB EBHRR TR RBIERARR PREZE
MR HEURERR SR SEZRBEBUBH2R RIIRBRE-

SHMBER

EERRIETR URTRBESRIEE TEEMMGEH TENR
BEMSSADETETBEL-#RBPNS RO LEERE ANARER
BrEEEN BREMBRENE BRMHTEETTE MEKEERE
FEE-RE-AFERERRT MR UHZANRFBRFEZEE
RRERRL AREHZREREZ EREAEETH U EHRER BRI
BHZ 2T TREREMTR2EGE URSEETEESEEZL
I



78 =rpxs

REABE BMERIRERA

EEE-NANZELTER SEERMBEREEN NAHKEE+5
FE-BESA #ASREEREERE EEERER - ET ~FE N4
BERFNEBI T EEAT EEET LF8%E16E3T3HEE T -EEY
BERBERRBR REERAAFE HIE TE REE S BFEBTDA)
BeE2TIEE BT

FEHEHNTFHLETLR ~ERBEERE Y EREFARRKE
Be-Rit EFERECTERENRETIRREFREPRILRER
BRAZER CHRERR-UEFAEZENRER SR SBIHE
EERBZREREN2TIREET BREF L743% » BFHREREA
BERNRERSZRE-

. 2 k4 1

iR AmmE FENEEESEAZ TS - RERNTERREATER
PEERIT AT ES WEDRMESIRGAZEEEATRER R
MEBERBEEREEEHRRERERE YU TINAREATEE
BONIZAN ERLE RIREMERLR RS EEEELIME
BRI

TENAEREZEENRURBR_FTNFRET HSERIBE
BICEM EEN SEBBERAERRRBES BUATEIRE
EamsRESZEREANTR-HZMNFEARBD RMBBHETEREAE
EMUE Rz ERERR AR PREARBEESEZ R

EEEIR
Lba
ZEF-FTARC-TAE

SRR 2

EEEAN 2REERITERIRREAKEE MR TRABRTARIZ
REFHT UEFPIRBEHEETSREE-ELBRAT FRE—SHE
EHRAREE ASTETHBHFTERRIGEREES FURBER
M- EEEMENETSEEIHET BNEHEN

XEOE

EFREA SHEENSEERE BEREEFHFARSBRSERG E5
REHAE SEEERAFREE AR P IREIMEE- AR EENET
BEECHETE BLUEERESREBER UHUBERERBEERR
REE-BHEFENAZEHERSENIDLHRERLALE HEES
EREE R ERANEE R EREER YRR - SERERZ TR
BEERBENT:

R R 258 % R # (Command and Control Communications)

SHRZHEEATE SERTART S EEREHBERA 2SS
REBERERERR AEEFRESEE UmREEEEERTEN
AR EEE-PIEEE - B RESRES M NEN RALACER
BUATE AREARSEIRISHOER RAHARREE #IZH A
BEHEURRRARS -SELCHREARARRTBBEER 2 EE (FH
BERRE MEE FEABRTREENB AR ZBEERRERE.

NEB™ (MuteTone™) MRERRTER ([ 7B ™])

NEMRERBIBALR RWERTRER 2 RPBE-ZIRERE
BN EERE AR RN R EF R RDER - EERERURR
ERRRRREEREERZ AR - DE"IREESZETEERRGHR
FORNEASMASZBEENRER-DEMZ BT T ENE
HEERNIZ RDBERETFRE BETRUNSTEAIERRER



NEMZEH EFEA2RERZERFERLAZES BAZEERR
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BE™ (PeepTone™)BBEBRAR ([FEF™))

BRI SENREBRRERRBERATR SHTBEES TR
B BBEY PEAR URDEBRHERN TEREZTERLRTRE
F-ERmEREEACRE ERRERSEAESRET BH AR
REBEEE RFEIEHELZUSDN (Integrated Services Digital Network)) *
DNRBZIBE EBIE(PSTN (Public Switched Telephone Network)) * B B4R -
E S ABEE(LAN (Local Area Network) R BB 8- BiBW 2 B—HAHEEE
BEE SHEEREVBEERTHBES WESEREABZAEA:
ER TR R EMEE ZEREHE Y ERAB —USABENEEETE
BB UM A N ERZERC

IR BFENRNBEY
SEZEEAPIAE R B BEIEP L Y288IFT X (Y28 Innovations) -
REHETZRNDRERBLBYE EEZRBERULSR LR 2
FEREAR EHRENRS.

SRV ENBEAYSERL SRHDEBERIFRE B3 TRAZTSR
BUERBRDRBES T BHZYREEES RESTEMBBERR
ERBBEEBEEFREE

FEAR-ZELATESEARARIETHLRHF Be-Nisseicom * BAT
BEEARREL - SH B REROREBESAMEEEPARHEY
BERLZSFE

HHEAE
EEER-ANBERVBNRARL RBLARS AERELE TS
PAREEEARARET LAT A USTRERRED REI R~
ANEE R EERREEMERE FEEZ MR RIEHD AER
EAEBNRANRRBLES A RO TRATEREBYSEE JEA
BRERES
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EEEFERLE([EB])
EREEEEESRRSEANSEBENERERMNB-FRERERZ
EEEREH-B MEARBEZ E5RNEREAIRHBRERERS
FEH BBTAEERE-BRTASREROREEHRERC B L HEAE
(Terrestrial Trunked Radio Access (TETRA)ERBRBE R MLAN BiBTE
B A5 E 2R 04 B % & (Royal National Lifeboat Institution (RNLD))BR
HERSELRAZITFHREBERE M BBROREBAFEHRERZ
S8 AERRESBERSR

HRENARRSEBRNBZ2ETREHEES T BEMTEMEHRE
R E R I E {Z F 4 (Geographical Information System (GIS)ABREAR S
2B BB FE A

B
BRI ATERSBEETRE YRS SRR EMER.

FEEESEEE AT S - EXRNEEE BEETRET NL+E
MAERBZEG URTEIR TR \ERASSSHELE SOFE
REFMUBENMESEOEMROER EERAREHBRRAREERE
(Information Technology for the Public (ITTP)) * EFR 2 B BEEARE 2
ARRE AFREGHEAATES -LUBBETE A DREREHAKER
BRSBTS e RARR B



80 z=EmEinnsn

(&)

1A R

OEHN FEEEFREARNFERBR R BUNSERRBS
HE-FE SBRLEREAHUAREEREEY URFBERBEBHREN
ERERKTER KRBEUEEREEREBREZINERREAZER
T BEREER

2. 4]

REZ-ZBZR-ENAZTRLEEER SESGEENRSEEE 16837
3SHEAT BEEZHERTISEIT1EBE T LF8% - £XBHFME
R IHaRGBrEA%E - AE12E9TeEHERT (hEMELEHEY
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REBEZZE-FRAZTBLEERE SR BB E8EL 221
BT E2MESTITERT ERABFE32138 M- R AT B HE -8
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B~F4TIEEET)
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BERTEHEERZER TEBACAREERMACRNERERBEER
R UREBREFERRBVEIE-

EE7-ERXEREETIENERR ARTETEMRBITETARE
FE-ARBEREBREBRTSMAR ZIMNERKR BERECRNEHD
BUARTL - ERETEEERSNERREBRSERAEZERT
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EEeRBAN-EER S+ A +tARENALTIREEM 2 BER
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FRAZBHERREMEZAR) EEFLRAIEEHAZBRERELR
EhBEBAAER - BEERE I RARERNER-ET-_FxF+mA
TR RERREERR0.06258 (R ARZEZSERAZHNEES
BEFFfe2RE) 2FREZEEBEIE2TIEEAT BEFE21T6EE
T EF43% ©

FERBREFSREUBRBZITE UARIER R Z AR B
BREBRERS ERRTAERRIRE 2 FRE2 NI NREUE Lt
BEREZRMD ([ARRSEHS]) -

DERREEARERH AR SHERLR (MMM EMEESiE
BT EMBITNRG LT ETFERR FRFE-BAENRREH B
BRZRARBERBREERT TERBZKRRE.

BRUABREHHET I NERR SRR R ZF A+t
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PREEBESRBMBER LT 2BBEELFE-BAEBEEEPIA
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BEFHERR G EREFNEREB E- BRI AEEEFRENRRNZ
EE ZEIABISEELN SREEERR ENEREHARB LEE
B ERMERER-N— AN FRIEEREELUA BEERE
AREHANBEHBATNEMNERER DT QLB ERATERE
THEEZA-

ELBAER REABRMAZETERSTHM2RAE G IR E R —
NAEFE-NAATERR-ANANAFE_TTEF) BHAGTEESR
SIBIER ETEERREZ —REFNATRECHREREIRE &
BTRRSHEREGNE REBLACESERSACHBRER I
S BITATEESRRRETREREARHEESZER PREEAEAR
BABBZEEEE RPEARANBEEERTREZEARARK
ERREEEEKE-

BEEEEATEERERAS 2B ENTES

HER FEERTESRTRER TATRERERTES AN E
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1B D FERUR (Muttitone) B £ /8 RIEFITE = - 8 BAsia Pacific Financial
Management Limited 5 512 - BEFES A BT HEBEREEX
HERRTARSE AEABRABMSHSHHAg288 UASTER
PR 8175 A BB 8 (Hong Kong Institute of the international Association of
Financial Executives)Z AI{E X fFo

Francis Gilbert KNIGHT 5 T TF _ AR EREWB T IFRITE
H®IF AT A DR Asian Security and Investigation Services Limited Z &
EREERITIT -8 BBritish Institute of Directors * British Institute of
Management - the American Society for Industrial Security & International
Association of Police ChiefsZ & B - REH B+ - FRBRE R REHE
BEFE2ER UAZEFEEBZREER-

RUAHE ST F+ - AERECEETEIFRITES - RHER
TREEEB=TFESKTREER - NANRERES - HREULRE
BAZERIRASE REATAILRBEASEEEEEREE-N—
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REBERTRBERFAE CENEBNTEREAZSEERER
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EEAHR 5 TS+ ARBEREEBEHTER - RALR
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Optic Cable Company)BE A RTBEBEREREE-

Frank BLEACKLEY B - FE—F+ - BRREFTAEEBUIERNTER -
D ARERETEE(Chubb Securlty Group)iE 2 EE P EIERER AT
(Chubb China Holdings Limited) 2 B E#4T8 S ERTEBAKBE LR
BN ERTERAR R - P EEERE LT BN EAREARY
BEREFE BEO_TNEEH-.

BREEAR
WMXHR TEEEARENTREE AEREEECEEEE BEME
AUniversity of Alberta 2 B8 £ -

TRE SEENBEREEN BREE s ERMBEE ATETHA
DERRERESHIAEER.

Roy GOSS REES A EREEEE - FEMBREEIHES SER
EREZERLES PEERRRRMBRESEBEEOEA —+E-RAR
BREBISHETMNAE IR E-ENACERRER 251 B 5K
BARBHRMBATRMENERARZHBES EXLFARAT
+Fo

Luiz Octavio VILLA-LOBOS 24 B AP AEMBE S LE AR
EERERENBCsEANWBLR BEHREZESupAeroBER 2 METIE
BELA UERAASERER THETERE L4

T 2 2EEHLER RN BESEEEFREARBERSIEZE
FRBEEE.
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